DOOGAR & ASSOCIATES

Chartered Accountants

Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Members of
Himalyan Expressway Limited

Report on the Audit of ¢the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Himalyan Expressway Limited (“the Company™), which comprise
the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2023, and the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive
income), Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, und notes to the
financial statements, including a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
(hereinafter referred 1o as “the financial statements™).

[n cur opinion and 1o the best of our information and according 10 the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™) in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section
133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2018, as amended, (“Ind A8”) and
ather accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March
2023, iis loss including other comprehensive income, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended
on that date,

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section 143(10) of
the Act. Qur responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the duditor 'y Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Finagncial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of (ndia together with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audii of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of
Lthics. We belicve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion on the financial staiements,

Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern

We draw attention to Note 40 to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023, which indicate that
the Corapany incurred net luss of INR 136.10 Lakhs during the year ended March 31, 2023 resulting into the
accumulated losses amounting to INR 41,345,77 Lakhs as at that date which has fully eroded the net worth of the
Company. The current liabilities exceeded its current assets by INR 37,501.08 Lakhs. However, the financials of
the Company have been prepared on a going concern basis for the reasons stated in the said note. Qur conclusion
is not modified in respect of this matter.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Company’s annual repott, but docs not include the financial statements and our
auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial staterents does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

I connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is 1o read the other intormation and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsisient with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears 10 be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information; we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibility of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matiers stated in Section 134(5) of the Act with respect
to the preparation of these financlal statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance {including other comprechensive income), changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in
accardance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards
(Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
accouniing records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were aperating effectively for ensuring the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, relevant 10 the preparation and preseniation of the financial
statements thal give a truc and fair view and are free from malerial misstatement, whether duc to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management and Board of Directors arc responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible {or overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilitics for the Audit of the Financlal Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance aboul whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes cur opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected 1o influence
the economic decisions of users 1aken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit, We also:

s Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the {inancial statements, whether due to fraud

© orerror, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufticient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of intesnal control.

¢  QObtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
arc appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(1) of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

s Evaluaic the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and celated disclosures made by management.

s Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concem basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related fo events or conditions
that may cast significant doubi on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that & material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify aur opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
futurc events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern,




¢ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of ihe financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

Muteriality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial stalements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of 8 reasonably knowledgeable user of the standalone
financial statements may be influgnced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative facters in (i) planning
the sf:ope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified
misstatements in the standalone financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
liming of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficicncies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a siatement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“thc Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A™ a
statement on the matiers specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that

a.  We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

b. [n our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as
it appears from our examination of those books;

c. The Balance Sheet, the Swatement of Profit and Loss {including other comprehensive income), the
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account;

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the [ndian Accounting Standards
preseribed under Section 133 of the Act;

c.  On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2023 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2023 from being
appointed as a director in teems of Section 164(2) of the Act;

f. The matter described in Material Uncertainty related 10 Going Concern paragraph above, in our
opinion, may have an adverse effect on the functioning of the Company.

g.  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexurc B”. Qur report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting;

h.  Wiih respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the
requircments of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, according 1o the information and explanation
given 10 us, the Company has not paid any managerial remuneration during the year;

. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors® Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 2023 on its
financial position in its financial statements - Refer Note 30 o the financial statements;
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iii.

vi.

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivalive contracts for which
there were any material foresecable losses;

There has been no delay in transfecring amounts, required to be transferred, 1o the [nvestor
LEducation and Protection Fund by the Company;

(2} The Management has represented that, (o the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
{which are material either individually or in the uggregaie) have been advanced or loaned or
invested (either rom borrowed [unds of share promium or any other sources or kind of
funds} by the Company to or in any other person or entify, including foreign entity
(“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, thut
the Intermediary shall, whether, divecily or indircctly lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behadl of the Company (“Ultimale
Beneficiarics™) or provide any gharantce, securily ar the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiarics;

{b) The Managemenl has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and bellel, po funds
{which are material either individually or in (he aggregate} have been reeeived by Lhe
Convpany Jront wny person or entity, Ingluding Raeign enlily (“Funding ["arlics™), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise. that the Company shall, whether,
direcily or indircetly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identifid I any taunner
whatsoever by or on behall of the Funding Party (“UlUmate Beneficiaries™) or provide any
guarantee, securily or the like on behall of the Ullimale Beneliciuries;

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in
the cirounstances, nothing has come to our msice that has caused us w believe thal the
represeniations under sub-clouse (i) and (i} of Rule 11(e), as provided under {a) and (b)
above, contain nny material misstatement;

The company has not declared or paid any dividend during the vear.

As proviso (o Rule 3(1) of the Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014 (a5 winended), which
pravided for books of accounts 10 have the feawre of audit (il edit fog and related maters
in lhe accounling softwvare used by the Company, is applicable to the Company only with
cflect from linancial year beginning April 01, 2023, the reporting under clause Rule § [{g)
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules. 2014 {us amended). is currently nol
applicable.

For Doogar & Associates
Chartercd Accountants
Firm Registration Na, 00

Partrier
Membership

UDIN: 23517347 BCPWWT4610

Place: New Dethi
Date: May 15,2023



Annexure “A” to the Independent Auditor’s Report

{Referred to in paragraph 1 under, Report on “Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements™ section of our report 1o
the members of Himalyan Expressway Limited of even date)

i.

iii.

vi.

vii.

In respect of the Company’s Property, Plant and Equipment and intangible Assets: -

. {A) The Company hag maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and

sltuation of property . Plant and Bquipment and relevant detuils of right-of-use assets.

{8) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets,

. The Company has a program of physical verification of Property, 'lant and Equipment to cover all the assets

once every three years which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and
the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the program, certain Property, Plant and Equipment were physically
verified by the management during the year. According to the information and explanations given to us,
discrepancies noticed on such verification were accounted for in the books of account.

. There is no immovable property, held by the Company and accordingly, the requirement to report on clause

3{i)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

. The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment (including right-of-use assets) and

intangible assets during the year.

. No proceedings have been initiated during the vear or are pending against the Company as at March 31,

2023 for holding any benami property under the Benami 1ransactions (Prohibition} Act, 1988 {as amended
in 2016% and rules made thercunder,

{A) The Company’s business does not require maintenance of inventories and, accordingly, the requirement
to report on clause 3(ii)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(B) The Company has not been sanctioned any working capital limits from banks or financial institutions
during any point of time of the year. Accordingly, the requirement 1o report on clause 3(ii){b) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not made investments in, provided any guarantee or security or granted any loan and
advances in nature of loans, secured or unsecured to companics, {irms, Limited Liability Parinerships during
the year. Accordingly, reporting uader Clause 3(iii) of the Order are not applicable.

There arc no loang, investments, guarantees, and security it respect of which provisions of sections 185 and
186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are applicable and accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iv) of
the Ocder is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepied any deposit.
Accordingly, reporting under Clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable,

We have broadly reviewed the cost records maintained by the Company pursuant to the Companies (Cost
Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, as amended prescribed by the Ceniral Government under sub-section (13}
of Scction 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed cost
records have been made and maintained. We have, however, not made a detailed examination of the same.

According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory ducs:

. In our opinion, the Company has generally been regular in depositing vndisputed statutory dues, including

provident fund, employces® state insucance, income-tax, sales tax, service tax, customs duty, excise duty,
value added iax, goods and service tax, cess and other material statutory dues applicable to it with the

appropriate authorities.

There are no undisputed amounts payable in respeel o) provident und, employees® siate insurance, incone-
tax, sales tax. service lax, customs duty, excise duty, value added 1ax. goods and service tax, ¢ess and other
material statulory dues in arrears as at March 31, 2023 for a peried of more thun six months from the date
they became payable.




b. Details of statutory dues referred to sub-clause (a) above which have not been deposited as on March 31,
2023 on account of disputes are given below:

1. Income Tax Act, 1961 Income Tax | High Court 2008-2009 60.97 60.97
2. Income Tax Act, 1961 Income Tax | High Court 2010-2011 74,88 74.88
3. Income Tux Act, 1961 Income Tax | High Court 2011-2012 59.29 37.40
viii.  According to the information and explanation given to us and the records of the Company examined by us,

there is no income surrendered or disclosed as income during the year In the tax asscssments under the
[ncome Tax Act, 1961, that has not heen recorded in the books of account,

i (a¥The Company has defaulted in repayment of dues 1o financial institutions, banks and Government /
debenluce holders during the year as stated Leluw. This matler has been disclosed in notes to the financial

“stalements:
Name af Party Nature of Payment II_ '“;I:;tl:'l:?"' ;. Due D_ute. '1 I_'aynwul Dute || Delay
ICICI Bank Limited Principal Payment 190.91 24-May-20 | 16-Jan-23 968
| ICICT Bank Limited Principal Payment 57.16 ) 24-May-20 | 16-Jan-23 968
1CICI Bank Limited Principal Payment 21.55 24-May-20 | 16-Jan-23 968
[CICI Bank Limited Principal Payment 272.63 24-Aug-20 | 16-Jan-23 876
ICICI Bank Limited Principal Payment 84.33 24-Aup-20 | 16-Jan-23 876
ICIC! Bank Limited | Principal Payment 57.16 24-Aug-20 | 16-Jan-23 876
ICICI Bank Limited | Principal Payment 24.36 24-Aug-20 | 16-Jan-23 876
ICICL Bank Limited Principal Payment 21.55 24-Aug-20 | 16-Jan-23 876
ICICI Bank Limited Principal Payment 270.32 24-Nov-20 | 16-fan-23 784
| ICICI Bank Limited Principal Payment 2.33 24-Nov-20 | 17-Feb-23 816 ~
1CICI Bank Limited Principal Payment 84.33 24-Nov-20 | 17-Feb-23 816
ICICI Bank Limited Principal Payment 57.16 24-Nov-20 | 17-Feb-23 816
[CICI Bank Limited Principal Payment 24.36 24-Nov-20 | 17-Feb-23 816
ICICI Bank Limited Principal Payment 21.55 24-Nov-20 | 17-Feb-23 816
1CICT Bank Limited Pringipal Payment 302.94 24-Feb-21 | L7-Feb-23 724
ICICI Bank Limited Principal Payment 7.32 24-Feb-21 | 17-Feb-23 724
ICIC] Bank Limited Principal Payment 86.38 24-Feb-21 | Uppaid 766
IC{CI Bank Limited Principal Payment 63.51 24-Feb~21 | Unpaid 7606
ICICI Bank Limited Principal Payment 24-Feb-21 | Unpaid 766




ICICI Bank Limited Principal Paymeni 23,95 24-Feb-2) | Unpuid 766
LCICI Bank Limited Principal Payment 285.08 24-May-21 | Unpaid 677 |
{CICI Bank Limijted Principal Payment 53.70 24-May-21 | Unpaid 677
ICICI Bank Limited Principal Payment 63.51 24-May-21 | Unpaid 677
ICICI Bank Limited Principal Payment 27.07 24-May-21 | Unpaid 677
{CICI Bank Limited Principal Payment 2395 24-May-21 | Unpaid 677
JCICI Bank Limited | Principal Payment | 285.08 24-Aug-21 | Unpaid 585
ICICI1 Bank Limited Principal Payment 93.70 24-Aug-21 | Unpaid 585
[CICI Bank Limited Principal Payment 63.51 24-Aup-21 | Unpaid 585
ICICI Bank Limited Principal Payment 27.07 24-Aup-21 | Unpaid 385
ICICI Bank Limited Principal Payment 23.95 24-Aup-21 | Unpaid 585
(CICI Bank Limited Principal Payment 285.08 24-Nov-21_| Unpaid 493
ICICI Bank Limited Principal Payment 93.70 24-Nov-21 | Unpaid 493
ICICI Bank Limited Principal Payment 63.51 24-Nov-21 | Unpaid 493
ICICI Bank Limited | Principal Payment 27.07 24-Nov-21 | Unpaid 493
ICICI Bank Limited Peincipal Payment 2395 24-Nov-21 | Unpaid 493
ICIC] Bank Limited Principal Payment 313.5% 24-Feb-22 | Unpaid 401
ICICI Bank Limited Principal Payment 103.07 24-Feb-22 | Unpaid 401 |
[CICI Bank Limited | Principal Payment | 69.86 24-Feb-22 | Unpaid 401
[CICI Bank Limited Principal Payment 29.78 24-Feb-22 | Unpaid 401
rl:ICI Bank Limited Principal Payment 26.34 24-Feb-22 | Unpaid 401
ICIC] Bank Limited Principal Payment 687.16 24-May-22 | Unpaid 312
ICICI Bank Limited Principal Payment 687.16 24-Aug-22 | Unpaid 220 J
ICICI Bank Limited Principal Payment 687.16 24-Nov-22 | Unpaid 128
ICICI Bank Limitcd Principal Payment 749.62 24-Feb-23 | Unpaid 36
1CICY Bank Limited Interest Payment 125.43 30-Nov-19 | Unpaid 1,218
ICICI Bank Limited | Jnterest Payment 31.55 30-Nov-19 | Unpaid 1218
wICI Bank Limited Interest Payment 21.20 30-Nov-19 | Unpaid L.218
1CICI Bank Limited Interest Paymeni 9.11 30-Ngv-19 | Unpaid 1,218
[CIC] Bank Limited fnterest Payment 30-Nov-19 | Unpaid 1.21 BJ




ICICI Bank Limited Interesl Payment 129.24 31-Dec-1% | Unpaid 187
ICIC] Bank Limited Interest Payment 32,38 31-Dee-19 | Unpaid 1,187
ICICI Bank Limited Interest Payment 21.95 31-Dec-19 | Unpaid 1,187
LCICI Bank Limited Interest Payment 9.36 31-Dec-19 | Linpaid 1,187
ICICI Bank Limited Interest Payment 8.28 31-Dec-19 | Unpaid 1,187
| JCIC1 Bank Limited | Interest Payment 128.33 31-Jan-20 | Unpaid 1,156
ICICI Bank Limited Interest Payment 32.16 31-Jan-20 | Unpaid 1,156
ICICI Bank Limited Interest Payment 21.80 31-Jan-20 | Unpaid 1.156
[Ci()l Bank Limited Intercst Payment 6.29 31-Jan-20 | Unpaid 1,156
ICICT Bank Limited Interest Payment 8.22 31-Jap-20 | Unpaid 1,156
ICICI Bank Limited Inierest Payment 119.05 29-Feb-20 | Unpaid 1.127
ICICI Bank Limited Interest Paynient 29.89 29-Feb-20 | Unpaid 1,127
[CECI Bank Limited | Interest Payment 20.08 29-Feb-20 | Unpaid 1,127
ICICI Bank Lintited Interest Payment 8.63 29-Feb-20 | Unpaid 1.127
[CICI Bank Limited 1 Interest Payment 7.57 29-Feb-20 | Unpaid 1.127
1CICI Bank Limited Interest Payment 128.51 31-Mar-20 | Unpaid 1.096
1CIC] Bank Limited interest Payment 32.42 31-Mar-20 | Unpaid 1.096
ICICI Bank Limited Interest Payment 21.37 51-Mar-20 | Unpaid 1.096
1CICT Bank Limited Interest Payment 9.37 J1-Mar-20 | Unpaid 1.096
1CICT Bank Limited Interest Payment 8.06 31-Mar-20 | Unpaid 1.0%6
[CIC] Bank Limited [nterest Payment 123.91 30-Aps-20 | Unpaid 1.066
ICICI Bank Limited Interest Payment 31.27 30-Apr-20 | Unpaid 1,066
ICICI Bank Limited Interest Payment 20.60 30-Apr-20 | Unpaid 1.066
ICICI Bank Limited | Interest Payment 9.03 30-4pr-20 | Unpajd 1,066
ICICI Bank Limited [nterest Payment 7.97 30-Apr-20 | Unpaid 1,066
1CICI Bank Limited | Interest Payment 127.83 31-May-20 | Unpaid 1.035
ICICI Bank Limited Interest Payment 32.26 31-May-20 | Unpaid 1.035
1CIC! Bank Limited Imerest Payment 21.26 31-May-20 | Unpaid 1,035
ICICI Bank Limited Interest Payment 9.32 31-May-20 | Unpaid 1.035
ICICI Bank Limtied Interest Payment 31-May-20 | Unpaid 1,035




1C1CT Bank Limited Inigrest Payment 125.4% 30-Jun-20 | Unpaid 1,005
ICiCl Bank Limited | Interest Payment 1169 3U-Jun-20 | Unpaid 1,005
[CICI Bank Limited | Interest Payment 20.89 30-Jun-20 | Unpaid 1,005
1CICI Bapk Limited Interest Payment 9.16 30-Jun-20 | Unpaid 1,005
ICICI Bank Limited Interest Payment 7.87 30-Jun-20 | Uppaid 1,605

| ICICI Bank Limited | lnterest Payment 129.38 31-Jul-20 | Unpaid 974
ICICI Bank Limited Interesi Payment 32.68 31-Jul-20 Unpaid 574
ICICI Bank Limited Interest Payment 21.53 31-jul-20 | Unpaid 974
1CICI Bank Limited Interest Payment %.44 31-Jul-20 | Unpaid 974
ICICI Bank Limited Interest Payment 8.12 3i-Jul-20 Unpaid 974
ICIC] Bank Limited [nterest Payment 128.83 31-Aug-20 | Unpaid 943
ICICI Baak Limited intercst Payment 32.35 31-Aug-20 | Unpaid 943
ICICI Bank Limited Interest Payment 21.45 31-Aug-20 | Unpaid | 943
ICICI Bank Limiied Interest Payment 9.40 31-Aug-20 | Unpaid 943
1CICT Bank [imited Iniergst Pavment 8.09 31-Aug-20 | Unpaid 943
ICICT Bank Limited [nterest Payment 126.43 30-8ep-20 | Unpaid 913

| ICICT Bank Limited interest Payment 31.9¢ 30-Sep-20 | Unpaid 913
1CICI Bank Limited Interest Payment 21.06 30-8ep-20 | Unpaid 913

\L@Bank Limited Interest Payment 9.23 30-Sep-20 | Unpaid 913

UCIC[ Bank Limited lnterest Payment 7.94 30-8Sep-20 | Unpaid 913
[CICI Bank Limited Tnterest Payment 130.07 31-0ci-20 | Unpaid 882

| ICICI Bank Limited Interest Payment 32,35 31-Oct-20 | Unpaid 882
ICIICI Bank Limited Interest Payment 21.85 31-Oct-20 | Unpaid 882
ICICI Bank Limited Interest Payment 9.35 31-Oct~20 | Unpaid 882
1CICI Bank Limited Tnierest Payment 8.24 31-Cet-20 | Unpaid 882
ICICI Bank Limited _ | Interest Payment 112.18 27-Nov-20 | Unpaid | 855

| ICICI Baok Limited | Interest Payment 2823 27-Nov-20 | Unpaid 855
ICICI Bank Limited Interest Payment 19.10 27-Nov-20 | Unpaid 855
ICICI Bank Limited Interest Payment 8.09 27-Nov-20 | Unpaid 855
ICICI Bank Limited Inierest Payment 7.01 27-Nov-20 | Unpaid 833




ICICI Bank Limited

[nterest Payment

143.03

31-Dec-20 | Unpaid

821

ICICI Sank Limited

Interest Payment

34.85

31-Dec-20 | Unpaid

821

[CICI Bank Limited

Interest Payment

23.73

31-Dec-20 | Unpaid

32]

ICICI Bank Limited

Interest Payment

9.84

31-Dec-20 | Unpaid

821

ICICI Bank Limiled

Interest Payment

8.95

31-Dec-20 | Unpaid

821

[CICI Bank Limited

Intercst Payment

126.91

30-Ian-21 Unpaid

791

ICICT Bank Limited

[nterest Payment

30.43

30-Jan-21 | Unpaid

791

ICICI Bank Limited

Interest Payment

21.20

30-Jan-21 Unpaid

791

ICICI Bank Limited

Inierest Payment

8.79

3Q0-Jan-2) | Unpaid

791

ICICI Bank Limited

[nterest Payment

7.99

30-Jan-21 | Unpajd

791

ICICI Bank Limited

Interest Payment

113.67

26-Feb-21 | Unpaid

764

[CICI Bank Limited

Interest Payment

27.26

26-Feb-21 | Unpaid

764

ICICI Bank Limited

Interest Payment

18.9%

26-Feb-21 | Unpaid

T64

ICICI Bank Limited

Interest Payment

7.87

26-Feb-21 | Unpaid

764

1CICI Bank Limited

Interest Payment

7.16

26-Feb-21 | Unpaid

764

1CICI Bank Limited

[nterest Payment

138.70

31-Mar-21 | Unpaid

731

[CICY Bank Limited

Interest Puyment

33.30

31-Mar-21 | Unpaid

731

| 1CICI Bank Limited

Interest Payment

23.19

31-Mar-21 | Unpaid

731

1CICI Bank Limited

Interest Payment

9.62

31-Mar-21 | Unpaid

731

ICICI Bank Limited

Interest Payment

8.14

31-Mar-21 | Unpaid

731

1ICICI Bank Limited

Interest Payment

127.55

30-Apr-21 | Unpaid

701

ICICI Bank Limited

Interest Payment

30.62

30-Apr-21 | Unpaid

701

ICIC] Bank Limited

Interest Pavment

21.33

30-Apr-21 | Unpaid

701

ICICi Bank Limited

Interest Payment

8.84

3G-Apr-21 | Unpaid

701

ICICT Bank Limited

Interest Payment

8.04

30-Apr-21 | Unpaid

701

[CICI Bank Limited

interest Payment

133.29

31-May-21 | Unpaid

670

ICICT Bank Lirited

Interest Payment

32.01

31-May-21 | Unpaid

670

ICICI Bank Limited

Interest Pavment

J1-May-21 | Unpaid

670

ICICI Bank Limited

Imerest Payment

31-May-21 | Unpaid

670

1CICI Bank Limited

Interest Payment

31-May-2) | Unpaid

670




ICICT Bank Limited [nterest Payment 129.09 30-Jun-21 | Unpaid 640
[CICI Bank Limited Interest Payment 31.03 30-Jun-21 | Unpaid 640
ICICI Bank Limited Interest Payment 21.61 30-Jun-21 | Unpaid 640
LCICI Bank Limited | Interest Payment 8.96 [.30-Jun-21 | Unpaid 640
1CICI Bank Limited Interest Payment 8.15 30-fun-21 | Unpaid 640
ICICT Bank Limited [nterest Payment 134.72 31-Jul-21 | Unpaid 609
ICICI Bank Limited Interest Payment 32.39 31-Jul-21 Unpaid 609
[CIC] Bank Limited Interest Payment 22.55 31-Jul-21 Unpaid 609
ICICI Bank Limited Interest Payment 9.35 31-Jul-21 Unpaid 609
ICICI Bank Limited Interest Payment 8.50 31-Jul-21 Unpaid 609
ICIC] Bank Limiled [nterest Paymeni 136.27 31-Aug-21 | Unpaid 578
ICICI Bank Limited Interest Payment 32.77 31-Aug-21 | Unpaid 578
[CIC] Bank Limited Interest Payment 22.82 31-Aug-21 | Unpaid 578
ICICI Bank Limited Interest Payment 9.46 31-Aug-21 | Unpaid 578
1CICI Bank Limited Interest Payment 8.60 31-Aug-21 | Unpaid 578
ICICI Bank Limited Interest Payment 132.51 30-Sep-21 | Unpaid 548
[CIC) Bank Limited Interest Payment 31.90 30-Sep-21 | Unpaid 548
[CIC] Dank Limited Interest Payment 22.21 30-Sep-21 | Unpaid 548
ICICI Bunk Limited Interest Payment 9.21 30-8ep-2) | Unpaid 548
1CICI Bank Limited Interest Payment 8.37 30-Sep-21 | Unpaid 548
ICICI Bank Limited lnterest Payment 32.22 30-Oct-21 | Unpaid 518
ICICI Bank Limited Interest Payment | 22.43 30-Cet-21 | Unpaid 518
ICICI Bank Limited Interest Payment 9.30 30-Oct-21 | Unpaid 518
ICICI Bank Limited Interest Payment 8.46 30-Oc¢t-21 | Unpaid 518
1CICI Bank Limited Interest Payment 133.84 31-Cct-21 | Unpaid a7
ICICI Bank Limited [nterest Payment 139.82 | 30-Nov-21 | Unpaid 487
[CIC] Bank Limited [nterest Payment 33.67 30-Nov-21 | Unppaid 487
ICICI Bank Limited | Interest Payment 23.44 30-Nov-21 | Unpaid 487
_ICICT Bank Limited Interest Payment 9.72 30-Nov-21 | Unpaid 487
ICICI Bank Limited Interest Payment 30-Nov-21 | Unpaid 487




ICICI Bank Limited Intevest Payment 141.09 J1-Dec-21 | Unpaid 456
ICICI Bank Limited Interest Payment 34.01 31-Dec-21 | Unpaid | 456
ICIC] Bank Limited Interest Payment 23.68 31-Dec-21 | Unpaid 456
ICICI Bank Limiied Intcrest Payment 9.82 31-Dec-21 | Unpaid 456
ICICI Bank Limited Interest Payment 8.92 31-Dec-21 | Unpaid 456
ICIC] Bank Limiied Interest Payment 142.57 31-Jan-22 | Unpaid 425
[CICI Bank Limited Interest Payment 34.36 31-Jan-22 | Unpaid 425
ICIC] B3ank Limited Interest Payment 23.92 31-Jan-22 | Unpaid 425
[CICI Bank Limited Interest Payment 9.92 31-Jun-22 | Unpaid 425
1CICI Bank Limited Interest Payment 9.02 31-Jan-22 | Unpaid 425
1CICI Bank Limited Interest Payment 130.21 28-Feb-22 | Unpaid 397
ICICI Bank Limited Interest Pavment 31.39 28-Feb-22 | Unpaid 397
ICICI Bank Limijted Imerest Pavment 21.85 28-Feb-22 | Unpaid 397
ICICI Bank Limited | Interest Payment 9.06 28-Feb-22 | Unpaid 397
ICICI Bank Limited Inierest Payment 8.24 28-Feb-22 | Unpaid 397
ICICI Bank Limited Interest Payment 146.00 31-Mar-22 | Unpaid 366
ICICI Bank Limited Interest Payment 35.24 31-Mar-22 | Unpaid 366
ICICI Bank Limited Interest Payment 24.53 31-Mar-22 | Unpaid 366
ICICI Bank Limited Interest Payment 10.18 31-Mar-22 | Unpaid 366
ICICI Bank Limited Interest Payment 9.25 31-Mar-22 | Unpaid 366
ICICI Bank Limited interest Payment 220,23 30-Apr-22 | Unpaid 336
[CICI Bank Limited Interest Payment 230.18 31-May-22 | Unpaid _ 305
ICICI Bank Limited Interest Payment 225.99 30-Jun-22 | Unpaid 275
ICICI Bank Limited [nterest Payment 237.99 31-Jul-22 | Unpaid 244
ICICI Bank Limited Interest Payment 249.12 31-Aug-22 | Unpaid 213
| ICICI Bank Limiied Interest Payment 252.82 30-Sep-22 | Unpaid 183
ICICI Bank Limited [nterest Payment 262.83 30-0Oct-22 | Unpaid 153
ICICI Bank Limited | Interest Payment 257.70 30-Nov-22 | Unpaid 122
ICICI Bank Limited Imerest Payment 270.14 31-Deec-22 | Unpaid 91
ICICI Bank Limited | [nterest Payment 279.20 31-Jan-23 | Unpaid 60




[CICI Bank Limited Interest Payment 25017 28-Feb-23 | Unpaid 32
[CICI Bank Limtited Interest Payment 275.50 31-Mar-23 | Unpaid 1
[ndia Infradebt

Limited Principal Payment 131.36 31-Mar-22 | 22-Jun-22 84
[ndia Infradebt

Limited Principal Payment 131.36 30-Jun-22 | 15-8¢p-22 78
India Infradebt

Limited Principal Payment 145.02 30-Sep-22 | 28-Oc¢t-22 29
India [nfradebt

Limited Interest Payment | 26.58 31-Jan-22 | 29-Apr-227 89
India Infradebt

Limited Interest Payment 23.98 28-Feb-22 | 23-May-22 85
India [nfradebt

Limited [nterest Payment 26.51 31-Mar-22 | 22-Jun-22 84
India lnfradebt

Limited Interest Payment 24.78 30-Apr-22 | 26-Jul-22 88
India Infradebt

Limited Interest Payment 25.53 31-May-22 | 24-Aug-22 86
India Infradebi

Limited Interest Payment 24.39 30-Jun-22 | 15-8¢p-22 78
India Infradebt

Limited Interest Payment 26.59 31-Jul-22 28-0ct-22 90
India Infradebt

Limited Tnigrest Payment 25.85 31-Aug-22 | 28-0Oct-22 59
India Infradebt

Limited Imierest Payment 23.50 30-Sep-22 | 28-Qct-22 29
India Infradebt

Limited Juigrest Payment 25.79 31-0ct-22 | 29-Noy-22 30

Xi.

(b} Accocding to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our audit procedures, we
report that the Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
governument or any government authority.

(¢) [n our opinion and according to the information and explanation given 10 us, the Company did not raisc
‘any term loan during the year accordingly, the requirement to report on clause (ix){c) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

{d) According to the information and explanation given to us, and the procedures performed by us, and on
the overal]l examination of the financial statements of the Company, we report that no funds raised on the
short term basis have been used for long-term putposes by the Company.

(e} The Company docs not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture. Accordingly, the requirement 10
report on clause 3(ix){e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

() The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture, Accordingly, the requirement to
report on Clause 3(x)1) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

{a) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt
instruments) during the year. Accordingly, the reporting under Clause 3(x)(a) of the Order are not applicable
to the Company.

(b} According to the information and explanation give to us, company has not made any preferential
allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures and henee reporting under
Clause 3(x)(b) of the Order are not applicable 1o the Company.

{a) During the course of the examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in accordance
with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according 1o the information and explanations
given 1o us, we have neither come across any instance of material fraud by the Company or on the Company
noticed or reported during the year, nor have been informed of any such case by the Management,
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{b) During the course of the examination of the books and records of the Company, carricd out in accordance
with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information and explanations
given to us, report under section 143(12) of the Act, in Form ADT-4 was not required to be filed.
Accordingly, the reporting under Clause 3(xi)(b) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

{c) During the course of the examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in accordance
with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information and explanations
given to us and as represented to us by the management, no whistle blower complaints have been received
during the year by the Company. Accordingly, the reporting under Claose 3(xi}{c) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause 3 (xii) of the CARO 2016 is not
applicable.

According to the information and explanation and records made available by the company, the Company
has complied with the provision of Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 where applicable, for
all transactions with the related parties and the details of related party transactions have been disclosed in
the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

{a) In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit systemn commensurate with the size and the
nature of its business.

{b) We have considered, the internal audit reports for the year under audit, issued to the Company during
the year and till date, in determining the natare, liming and extent of our audit procedures.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during the year the Company
has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly,

reporting under Clause 3(xv) ol the Order are not applicable.

(a) In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45-TA of the Reserve Bank

-of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, reporting under Clause 3(xvi)a), (b) and (¢) of the Order are not applicabie.

(b} According to the information and explanation and records made available by the company,, there is no
core investment company within the group (as defined in the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank)
Directions, 2016) and accardingly reporting under clause 3{xvi}(djof the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not incurred cash losses in the cwrent financial year. The Company has incurred cash
losses amounting to [NR 3057.30 Lakhs in the immediately preceding financial year respectively.

There has been no cesignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year.

On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in the financial statements, the ageing and expecied dates of
realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the
financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on aur
examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions and considering the Company’s current liabilities
exceeds the current assets by INR 37,301.08 Lakhs, the Company has letter of financial support from the
Holding Company, nothing has come to our atiention, which causes us to believe that Company is not
capable of meeting its liabilities, existing at the date of balance sheet, as and when they fall due within a
period of one year from the balance sheet date.

We, further state that this is not an assurance as 1o the future viability of the Company and our reporting is
based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that
all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the
Company as and when they fall due.

A k.
o A Ci;q\.-
N>



. 'Phie Cusipany s not required to contribute any amount towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR).
Accordingly, reporting under Clause 3 (xx)(a)&(b) of the Order are not applicable.

For Dooguar & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration

UDIN: 23517347BGPWWT4610

Pla;:e: New Delhi
Date: May 15, 2023



Annexure B to the Independent Auditors’ Report on the financial statements of Himalyan Expressway
Limited

(Referred to in paragraph 2(g) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Repulatory Requirements’ section of our report
of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference 10 financial siatements of Himalyan Expressway
Limited (“the Company™) as of 31 March 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the
Company for the year ended on that date,

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The management of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based
on the internal financial coatrols with reference 1o financial statements criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note. These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
cifectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company’s
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required
under the Corapanies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred to as “the Act™).

Auditor*s Responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference o financial
statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards
on Auditing, preseribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable 1o an audii of internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were established and maintained and whether
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements and their operaiing effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements inciuded obtaining an understanding of such internal financial
controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaloating the design and operating
effectivencss of inlernal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference 10 financial statements,

Meaning of internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting angd the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of
the asscts of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and thai receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reascnable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statcments.




Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financinl Reporting with Reference to Financinl
Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, including
the possibility of collusion or lmproper manggemcent overrlde of controls, material misstatements due to error or
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the Internal financial controls with
reference 10 financial statemenis to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements may become inadequale because ol changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policles or procedures may deteriorate,

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company has, in
all matecial vespects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporiing and such internal
financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the internal
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Doogar & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 00

Partner
Membership

UDIN: 23517347BGPWWT4610

Place: New Delhi
Date: May 15,2023
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HIMALYAN EXPRESSWAY LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

1. Signiftcant accounting policies
1.1 Significant accounting policies

The significant accounting policies applied by the campany in the preparation of its financial statements are listed below.
Such accounting policies have been applied consistently to all the periods presented in these financial statements, unless
otherwise indicated.

I. Basis of preparation:-

The Company has adopted accounting policies that comply with Indian Accounting standards {(Ind AS) notified
by Ministry of Corporate Affairs vide notification dated February 16, 2015 under section 133 of the Companies
Act 2013, Accounting policies have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these financial
statements. The financial statements ceferred hereinafier have been prepared in accordance with the requirements
and instructions of Schedule [} 1o the Companies Act 2013, amended from time to time, applicable to companies
to whom Ind AS applies.

Current and non-current classificatian

The Company presents assets and labitities in the balance sheet based on current/man-corrent classification. An
assct is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

« it js expected to be realised in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the Company’s normal opcrating
cycle. it is held primarily fo the purpase of being traded;
s it is expected to be realised within 12 months after the reporting date; or

¢ it is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to seitle a liability for at least
12 months after the reporting date.

All other assets are classified as non-current.
A liability is classificd as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:
o it is expecied to be scttled in the Company’s normal operating cycle;

= it1s held primarily for the purpose of being traded,;

v itis due 1o be settled within {2 months atter the reporting date; or the Company does not have an unconditional
right to defer seitlement of the liabihty for at least 12 months afier the reporting date.

All other liabilities are classified as von-current.
II. Use of Estimates:-

‘the preparation of financial statements require estimates and assumptions to be made that affect the ceported
amount of asset and liabilitics on the date of the financial statements and the reported amount of the revenue and
the expenses during the reporting period. Difference between the actval results and estimates are recognized in
the period in which the results are known / matcriaiized,

ITII. Property, Plant and Equipment (PPLE): -
PPE are stated at cost, net of accumulated depraciation and accumulated inpairment losses, if any.

The carrying amount of a property, plant and equipment is de-recognised when no future cconomic benefits are
expected from its use or on disposal.

Machine spares that can be used only in connection with an item of PPE and their use i1s expected for mose than
one year are capitalized.

-y
",

- . ) ) . S
Depreciation on property plant and equipment is provided on siraight line method bas o estimal 1

of assets as presgihed in scliedule 1110 the Companies Act, 2013,




" HIMALYAN EXPRESSWAY LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THYX YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

Depreciation on additions ta / deduction firom property plaut and equipment during the year is charged on Pro-

rata basis / up to the moath in which the asset is available for use / disposal.

Giaing and losses on de-recognition/disposals are determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of those assets, Gans and Losses if any. are recognised in the statement of profit or loss

an de-recogmtion or disposal as the case may be

IV, Intangible Assets:-

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost less accumulaied amortisation

and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

The cost of an intangible asset includes purchase cost including any impert duties and non-refundahle taxes, and

any directly attributable costs on making the asset ready for its intended use.

i. The Cost of Softwares are amortized on a straight line basis over u period of six years.

. Amortization on Intangible Assets (Toll Road) is provided in the manner presertbed in Serial-3(ii) of

Schedule 11 to the Companies Aci, 2013.

The amortisation period and method are reviewed at least at cach financial year end. 1f the expected useful life of
the asset is significantly differemt from previous estimates, the amortisation period is changed accordingly.

V. Capital work in progress:-Capital work-in-progress represents capital expenditure incurred in respect of the
project under execution and 18 carried at cost. Cost includes construction costs, borrowing costs capitalized and

other direct expenditure.

V1. Borrowing Cost:-

Borrowing cost included interest and amortization of ancillary cost incurred in connection with the arrangement
ot borrowings. Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that
necessarily takes a substantial peried of time to get ready for its intended vse or sale are capitalized as part of the

cost of the respective assets. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period they occur.

VILInventories:-

[nventories of store and spares are vaiued at weighted average cost or net realizable value whichever is lower.

VIIL Impairment of non-financial assets: -

An assets is treated as impaired, when carrying cost of assets exceeds its recoverable aynount, An impaired loss
is charged to statement of profit and loss in the year in which an assets is identified as impaired. The impaired

loss is recognized in prior accounting period is reversed if there is a change in the estimate of the
recoverable amount.

IX. Cash and cash cquivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand and at bank, deposits held at call with banks, other short-term
highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to 2 known
amount of cash and are subject 10 an insignificant risk of changes in value and are held for the purpose of meeting

short-term cash comimitments.

For the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents consists of cash and short term
deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdraft as they are being considered as integral part of the
Company’s cash management. Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowmngs in current liabilities'in the balance

sheet. e

W




HIMALY AN EXPRESSWAY LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

X.

XL

Retirement and other cioployee henefits:-
Retirement benefit costs and termination benefits

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans arc recognised as an expense when employees have
rendered service entitling them to the contributions

For defined benefit retivement beuefit plans, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the projected
unit credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at the end of each annual reporting year. Re-
measurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the changes to the asset ceiling (if applicable)
and the return on plan assets (excluding interest), is reflected immediately in the Balance sheet with a charge or
credit recognised in other compreliensive income in the year in which they occur. Re-measurement recognised
in other comprehensive income is reflected immediately in retained eamings and will not be reclassified 10
Statement of profit and loss. Past service cost is recognised in Statement of profit and loss in the year of a plan
amendment ur when the Company recogises carresponding restructuring cost whichever is earlier. Net interest
is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. Defined benefit costs are
categorized as follows:

= service cost (including current service cost, past service cost, as well as gains and losses on curtailmenis
and settlements),

= qet interest expense or income; and

s re-measurcment

The Company presents the first two components of defined benefit costs in Statesment of profit and loss in the
line item ‘Employee benefits expenses’. Cuitailment gains and losses are accounted for as past service costs,

The retivement benefit obligation recognised in the Balance sheet represents the actual deficit or surplus in the
Company’s defined benefit plans. Any surplus resulting from this calculation is limited to the present value of
any economic benefits available in the form of refunds from 1he plans or reductions m future contributions to
the plans.

Short-term and other long-term employee benefits

A lability is recognised for bencfits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave and
sick leave in the year the related service is rendered at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expecied 10 be
paid in exchange for thai service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee benefits are measured at the undiscounted amount of
the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the related service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employee benefits are measured at ihe present value of the
estimated future cash outflows expected to be made by the Company in respect of services provided by
employecs up to the reporting date.

Tax Expenses:-
Income Tax is determined in accordance with the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961,

Current Tax:-Current Tax are recognized in statement of profit & loss except when they relate to items that
arc recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current tax is also
recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Deferred Tax:- Deferred tax is recognized using the balance sheet approach on temporary differences at the

reporting date between the (ax bases of asse(s and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting

purpose at rcpomng date l)efcl red mmmc lax assets dt]d llabllmes are measured us;ug tax rates cxpec(ed to
T

5




HIMALYAN EXPRESSWAY LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

Deferred tax asscts are recognized for the unused tax credit to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits
will be available against which the losses will be utilized. Significant management judgment is required to
deiermine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level
of future taxable profits,

XILFinancial Instrument

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to & financial asset of one entity and a financial hability or
equity instrument of another entity

Financial assets
(i) Recognition and initia) measurement

A financial asset is imtially recognised at fair value and, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction costs that are
directly attributable to its acquisition or issue. Purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade
date, which is the date on which the Company becames a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

{ii} Classification of financial assets

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition and subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value
through other comprehensive income (OCL), and fair value through profit and loss. A financial asset is measured
at amortised cost 1f it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated at FV1TPL;

= The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash
flows; and

s The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount cuistanding.

A financial asset is classificd as FVTOCI only if it meets both of the following conditions and is not recognised
at FVIPL;

s The asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash
flows and selhing financial assets; and

= The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount cutstanding.

All other financial assets are classified as measured at TVTPL.
(iii) Derecognition of financial gssets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it rransiers the financial asset and substantially all the visks and rewards of ownership of the asset wo
another party.

(iv) hinpairment

The Campany applics the expected credit loss model for recognising impairment loss on financial assets measured
at amortised cost and other contractual rights to receive cash or other financial asset.

Expected credit losses are the weighted average of credit losses with the respective risks of default occurring as
the weights. Credit loss is the difference between all conwractual cash flows that are due to the Company in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive (1.e. all cash shartfalls).
discounted a1 the original effective interest rate (or credit-adjusted effective inferest rate for purchased or
ortginated eredit-impaired financial assets), The Company cstimates cash flows by considering all contractuai
terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) through the
expected life of that financial instrument.

sures the loss allowance for a financial instriment at an amount equal Jatie Lif
i{ risk on that financial instrument has increased significantly sinf

4 3Q

-




" HIMALYAN EXPRESSWAY LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2023

b)

the credit risk an a financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial recogmtion, the Company
measures the loss allowance for that inancia) instrument at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses,
12-month expected credit losses are portion of the life-time expected credit losses and represent the lifetivne cash
shortfalls that will result if default occurs within the 12 months after the reporting date and thus, are not cash
shortfalls that are predicied over the next 12 months.

If the Company measuced loss allowance for a financial mstrument at lifetime expected credit loss mode) in the
previous year, bul determines at the end of a reporting year that the credit risk has not increased significantly
since initial recognition due 1o improvement in credit quality as compared to the previous year, the Company
again measures the loss allowance based on 12-month expected credit losses.

When making the asscssment of whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initjal
ecognition, the Company uses the change in the risk of a default occurring over the expected life of the financial
instrarment instead of the change in the amount of expected credit losses. To make that assessment, the Company
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a
defauit oceurring on the financial instrament as at the date of initial recognition and considers reasonable and
supportable information, that is available without undue cost or effort, that is indicative of significant increases
in credit risk since nital recognition.

The Company has performed sensitivity analysis on the asstmptions used and based on current indicaters of
future economic conditions. the Company expects to recover the carrying amount of these assets.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(i) Classification as debt or equity

Debt and cquity instruments issued by a company are classified as either financial liabilities or as cquity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equily instrument,

(i) Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all
of its liabilitics. Equity justruments issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue cosis.

(iii) Financial liabilities
I‘inancial habilities ave classified as either financial liabilities ‘a1 FVTPL or *amortiscd cosi’.
Financial liabilities at FVTPL.:

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is either hield for trading or it is
designated as at FVTPL.,

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:
» It has been incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing 1t in the near term; or

» on initial recognition it is pari of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Company manages
together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

& it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument,

A financial liability other than a financial liability held for trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial
recognition ifS

« such desigonation eliminates or significantly reduces a mcasurement or recognition inconsistency that
would otherwise arise;

mdnagcd and its pe|f01 mance is evaluatcd on a fair value baqm in accordance

dog mg;1Lqﬁ1Nmﬂm%muﬂ or investment strategy, and nformation about the
. b
: asis; or

in




HIMALYAN EXPRESSWAY LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

« it foring part of a contract cantaining one ar more embedded derivatives, and Ind AS 109 permits the entive

comibined contract 1o be designated as at FVTPL in accordance with Ind AS 109,

Financial liabilities at FVTPU are stated at fair value, with any gains or Jusses arising on remeasurement
recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss. The net gain or loss recognised in Statement of Profit and L.oss
incorporates any interest paid on the financial liability and is included in the Statement of Profit and Loss. For
Liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognised

in OCI.

The Company derecognises financial labilities when, and only when, the Company’s obligations arc discharged,
cancelled or they expire. The differcoce between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and

the consideration paid and payable is recognised in the Statement of Profit and 1Loss.
Financial liabilities at Amortised Cast:

Borrowings:-

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method. Fees
paid on the establishiment of loan facilities are recognised as transaciion costs of the loan to the extent that it is
probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw down
ocews. To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down,
the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for liguidity services and amortised over the period of the facility to which

it relates.

Rorrowings are derecognised from the balance sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged,
cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrymg amount of a financial liability that has been
extinguished or transferred 10 another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash asscts transferred

or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss as other gains/(losses).

Borrowings are classified as curcent liabilities unless the company has unconditional right to defer seitlement of

the liability for atleast twelve months after reporting period,

Trade and other payables

A payable is classified as *trade payable’ if it is in respect of the amount due on account of goods purchased or
services received in the normal course of business. These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services
provided to the Company prior to the end of financial year which are unpaid. Trade and other payables are
presenied as current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months afier the reporting period. They are
recagnised initially at their fzir value and subsequently measured at amoitised cost using the effective interest

method.

De-recognition of financial liability

A financial liahility is derecoguised when the obliganon under the lability is discharged or cancelled or expires.
The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability that has been extinguished or transterred to
another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash asscts transferred or liabilities assumed, is

recognised in profit or loss as other income or finance costs.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and labilitics are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where there is a
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to setile on a net basis or realisg
the asset and settle the liability simultancously. The legally enforceable right must not be eontingent on future

events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of
bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparty,

=
*
o

- defaull, insglvency or



HIMALYAN EXPRESSWAY LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

XIIL Fair Value Measurement:-

XIV.

XV.

The Company measures financial instrumenits at fair value at each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a hiability in an orderly wransaction
between market participants af the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption
that the transaction to sell the asset or teansfer the liability takes place either:

~ In the principal market for the assei or liability or
- In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

A fair value measurement of a non-fimancial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate
ceconotnic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Entity uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data ace
available 10 measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of
unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is ineasured or disclosed in the financial statemenis are categorized
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value mcasurement as a whole:

Level 11 Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2: Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
is directly or indivectly observable

Level 3: Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservablc

tor the purpose of fawr value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets & liabilities on the basis
of the nature, characteristics and the risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as
explained above.

Farnings Per Share:-

Basic earnings per share is computed vsing the net profit for the year ativibutable 10 the shareholders’ and
weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per share is computed using
the net prefit for the year attnbutable to the shareholder’ and weighted average number of equity and potential
cquity shares outstanding during the year including share options, convertible preference shares and debentures,
except where the result would be anti-dilutive. Potential equity shares that are converted during the year are
included in the calculation of diluted earnings per share, from the beginning of the year or date of issuance of
such potential equiiy shares, to the date of conversion.

Provisions and contingencies:-
a) Provisions:-

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation as 4 result of a past event, it is probable
that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimaie can be made of the amount of the obligation. Pravisions are not recognised for future operating losses.
Provisions are measured al the present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to settle
the present obligation at the end of the repoiting period. The discount rate used to determine the present value is
a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessiments of the time valve of money and | 5 cif'lc to the

DY



" HIMALYAN EXPRESSWAY LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

XV

XVIL

XV

XIX,

XX.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of
which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertam futuce events not
wholly within the control of the Company or a present obligation that arises from past events where 1 is either
not probable that aty outflow of resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be
nade. [nformation on contingent liability is disclosed in the Notes to the Financial Statements. Coatingent assets
are not recognised. However, when the realisation of income is virtually certain, then the related asset is 1o longer
a contingent asset, but it is recognised as an asset.

Revenue Recognition:-

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account the
contractually defined terms of payment net of refuros and allowances, trade discounts and volume rebates,
excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government,

Revenue is recognized from toll road based on Toll Fee Collected.

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding, and the rate
applicable. [nterest received on income tax refund is accounted for on actual receipts basis.

Insurance Claims:-
Insurance Claims are accounted for based on receipt of elaims and are accounted under “Other Income™.
Government grant;-

Government grants relating to the purchase of property, plant & equipment and intangible assets are included
in current or non-current liabilitics as deferred income and are credited to statement to profit or loss in the
proportion of the amortized cost of related assets and presented within other income.

Critical accounting estimates, assumptions and judgements:-

In the process of applying the Company's accounting policies, management has made the following estimates,
assumptions and judgements, which have significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
statermnent:

a) Property, plant and equipment

The Company assess the remaining vseful lives and residual value of property, plant and equipment.
Management believes that the assigned useful lives and residual value are reasonable, the estimates and
assuniptions made to determine depreciation are critical to the Company’s financtal position and performance.

by Tncome faxes

Management judgment is required for the calculation of provision for income taxes and deferred tax assets and
liabilities, The factors used in estimnates way differ from actval outcome which could lead to significant
adjustiment to the amounts reported in the standalone financial statements.

¢) Contingencies

Management judgement is required for estimating the possible outflow of resources, if any, in respect of
contingencies/claim/litigations against the Company as it is not possible to predict the outcome of pending
maiters with accuracy.

Recent pronouncements
The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has vide notification dated 31 March 2023 notificd Companies (Indian
Accomnting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023 (the ‘Rules’) which amends certain accounting standards, and
are effective 1 April 2023. The Rules predominantiy amends Ind AS 1, Presentation of financial statements and
Ind AS 12, Income taxes, whereas the ather amendments notified by these rules are primarily in the nature of
clarifications. As per the Management's assessment, these amendments are not expected to have a material
impact on the Company in the current or future reporting periods and on forcseeable future InppsFERals,




INMALYAN EXVRESSWAY LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCII 31, 2023
(Al Amount in INI Laldhs)

Note As at March 31, As at March 31,
Farticulars No. 2023 2022
ASSETS
Non Current Asscts
Praperly, plant and equipricm 2 47 51 2880
Intangible asscets 3 13,375 80 32,689.78
Fimancial Assets
Gither financia! agsets 4 5.05 434
beam clirrent ax assets (net) 3 64.36 4G 035
- 13493.62 3276397
Current Assets
Inventaries [ -
Financial Assets
Cash and cash cavalenis 7 643,81 22137
ank balances other than cash and cash cquivalents b 706 670
Other fisancial assets 4 0.5 -
Other corrent asscs L0 76.54 75.43
748.00 303.49
TOTAL ASSETS _ F4.241.62 RXRUMS Y
EQUITY AND LIABILITIYS
EQuiTy
Equity share capital 1 1180904 11,805 ()
Other equity 12 (HLAIE 7 (41209 671
(29.336.7T) {29.900.67)
LIABILYVIES
Non Coerent Lizbilitics
Financial Liabilitics
Borrowings 13 17,450 35 16,446 84
Provisions 14 4.65 397
Other non-current ligbihitrgs 15 5.074.143 5817097
15.58290.02 25.268.78
Current Liabilitics
Financial Liabitities
Barrowings H) 28.368.02 29947 89
Trade payavles 17
total ustanding dues of .uicro and small citerprises - -
wtal oustanding dues of creditors other than 9123} 996.39
nicre and sraall enterprises
Other financial Gabihtics 8 8,950 96 6,236.71
Provisicns 19 7 46 5,83
Other current liabilines 20 10 321 JUEY:]
38.249.08 37,198.36
TOTAL EQUITY & LIABILITIES 34,244.62 33.066.47

Signifizant accoumting poilcies

The accompanying notes fornt an mtegral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date attached.

For Doogar & Associntes
Charterea Accountants
Firny Registration No, 000561N

For and on behalf ol 1he Board of Dircetors
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HIMALYAN EXPRESSWAY LIMITED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LLOSS FO
(All Amount in INR Lakhs}

R

THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31(,2023

Particulars Note No. Year ended Year ended

" March 31,2023 March 31,2022
Revenue from operations 21 4.894.77 1,203.39
Other income 22 1.352.67 247.88
Total income 6,247.44 1,451.27
Expenses
Empiovee benefiis expense 23 408.83 255.49
Finance costs 24 4.958.21 4,324.73
Operation & Maintenance Lxpenses 25 1,578.19 77533
Depreciaiion and amortization expense 26 2,760.93 1,237.26
Impairment of toll collection right 20A {3.443.32) 13,790.00
Other expenses 27 L1848 145.62
Total expenses 6.381.35 20,528.46
Prafit/(Loss) before exceptional items and tax (133.90) (19,077.19)
Exceplional items - -
Profit/(Loss) before tax (133.90) (19,077.19)
Tax expense:
(1) Current tax - -
(2) Deferred tax - -
Profit (L.ass) for the year after tax (133.90) {19,077.19)
Other Comprehensive Ineomec
[tems that will not be reelassified to profit or loss
Remeasurcments ol the net defined beaefit plan (2.20) 1.77
Incone tax relating to items that will not be reclassified 10 - -
profit or loss
Other comprehensive income (2.20) 1.77
Total comprehensive income Tor the year {136.10) (19,075.42)
Earnings per equity share (face value of INR 10 each) 29
(1) Basic (0.0 (16.15)
(2) Diluted (0,313 (16.15)
Signiticant accounting policies 1

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the (inancial statements

As per our report of even date attached.

For Doogar & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 0003561N

Vardhman
Partner
M. No, 317347

Place ; New Delhi
Date May 15, 2023

For and an behalf of the

,’
/ fe—m—

Ranvijay Singh
Diretor & CEO
DIN-00020876

w
L

Meglia Isavindti
Company Seerclary
M. No, IF 7639

Baaril of Directors
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ICailash Chander Batra

Director
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Sudhir Ksinar Shukla

CFC
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Mir Pratap
Direcior
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HIMALYAN EXPRLESSWAY LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023
{(All Amount in INR Lakhs)

Particulars

Year ended March 31,

Year ende¢l March

2023 31,2022
A. Cash Nlow from operating activities
Net profit before 1ax and exceptional items f133.90} (19,077.19
Add: Depreciation 2.760.93 1,237.26
Add: Tmpairment of wll collection right 3,443.32) 13,790.00
Add: Finarce costs 4,958.21 4,324.75
1.ess; Interest income (0.37) {0.47)
Less: Grant amorlisation {743.65) (233.30)
Less: Excess provision written back - -
L.ass: Profit on Sale of Assels : (0,023
Operating profit before working capital changes 3,397.90 41.07
Adjustment for :
(Increase) / decrcase in other current assets {(1.70) 0.89
(Increase) ! decrease i other non -curvent assets {1.61% 2.41
Increase / {decrease) in trade and other payables {304.61} 32046
Increase / {decrease) in ether current liabilities {0.00) 6.80
Increase / (decrease) in non-cusvent liabilities - -
Ircrease / (decreass) in provisions {0.90) (0.71)
Cash generated from operations 3.089.08 370.93
Income tax paid, net of relund (24.31) 0.90
Net cash genecated from operating Activitics 3,064,777 371.82
B. Cash flow from investing activities
Interest received (.37 0.43
Tnvestment in fixed deposits (037 (275)
Insorance claim ) .
Sale of {ixed assets 1.13 3.66
Purchase of fixed asscts (23.47) (0.48)
Net cash gencrated from investing activitics {22.34) .86
C. Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds lrom horrowings, net {376.36) 1,311.24
[nterest paid {2,023.63) (1,801.14)
Net cash used in financing Activities (2,599.98) (489.50)
Net change in cash and cash equivalents 442.44 (117.22)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 221.37 338.59
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 663.81 221.37

Noes:

The Cash Flow Statement bas deen prepared under the indirect method as sct in the Ind AS-7 "Cash Flow Statement™,

Significant accounting policies
The accompitying notes form an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date attached.
For Doogar & Associates

Chartered Accounmants
Firm Registration No. DBOS6IN

fio—
[
Ranvijay Singh
Dircolar & CEO
IDIN-00020876

Vardhm;
Partner
M.No, 517347

Meghi Kainth
Company Secrelary
M. No. T 7639
Place : New Delhi

Date: May t5, 2023

e /{._/
75

For and on behalf of the Board

&

Kailash Chander Batra
Director

DIN-02506463

( e
Yir PrataplArora
Dirceior
DN 09197070
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HIMALYAN EXPRESSWAY LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEVMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

{All Amount in INR Lakhs)

Note No., 3
Intangible assets

Zirakpur parwanoo

Particulars expressway Software Total
(Toll road)

As at April 01, 2021 69,267.90 258.23 69,526.13
Additions - - -
Dispuosals - - -
As at March 31,2022 69,267.90 258.23 69,526.13
Additions - - -
Disposals - - -
As at March 31, 2023 69.267.90 258.23 69,526.13

Agcumulated amortization and impairment
As at April 01, 2021 21,561.43 254.20 21,815.63
Amortisation for the year 1,229.65 1.07 1,230.72
Impairment of Toll collection right 13,790.00 13,790.00
Disposals - - -
As at Mareh 37,2022 36.581.09 255.26 36.836.35
Amortisation for the year 2756.59 0.71 2,757.30
Impairment of Toll collection right {3,443.32) {3,443.32)
Disposals = 5 -
As at March 31, 2023 35.894.35 255.98 36.150.33 |

Net carrying amount

As at March 31, 2021 47,706.47 4.03 47,710.50

As at March 31,2022 32,686.82 2.97 32.689.78

As at March 31, 2023 33.373.55 2.25 33.375.80




TNMALYAN FXPRESSWAY LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCI 31,

(Al Amonnt in INK 1akhs)

2023

Particulars

As at Mareh 31,2023 As at Mareh 34, 2022

Nole ne. 4

Qther hnancial assets (non currendd

Unsecured, considered gnad - Measured at amortised cost
Sceurity deposns

Fried Deposus with banks more than twetve monts maturity

Note ng. 5
Nop Curvenl tay assets (net)
Taxes pand
1.253: Frovision for income fax

Note no. 6
[nventories
Stores and spares (valued ot cost or NRY whichover 18 lower)

Note no, 7
Cash and cash cquivalents
Cash on hand
RBalances wilh banka
= I corrent aecounrt
- I deposit accosnts with matusly upte three months

Note no. 8

Bank balances other fina cash and cash equivalenis
Other bank balances

Farmarked balances with banks*

* Pledped with gavernment anthanics

Note no. 9
Gthier Nuancial asscts
Advance agains: cxpeases

Note na. 10

Qther current assets
Prepaid experses
kers

595 434
5.95 4.&
209,60 184 69
144 .64 [ENRE
64.36 40.05_
1298 13,510
650,82 215 83
663.81 121.37
7.06 6.70
7.06 6.70
0.59 :
0.59 :
76.54 75.43
76.54 75.43




IIMALYAN EXPRESSWAY LIMITLED
NOTES FORMING PART OF TIHE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCI 31, 2023

(AN

Amaount in INR Lalths)

Note no. 11
Lguity share capital

{ii)

(iii) Reconciliation of the cquity shares ontstanding at the Heginning awd at the end of the yeur

(iv)

(v}

(vi)

Particulars

Ay at Mareh 31, 2023

As at March 31,2022

Number

Amount (Laldhs}

Namber

Amount (Lakhs)

Authovised share eapital:
lguity shares o INR 1) cach

11% Redeemante Cumulative Preference Shares af

INR 00/ cach

[ssved, subseribed & fully paid nup share capital:

Equity shares of TNR 16 each

12,50.00.0¢40
25,00,000

11.80.90.000

12,300.00
2.300.00

11,809 00

12,50.00.000
25.00.600

11,50.90.640

12.500.00
2.500.00

11.809.00

Terms/rights attacled to cquity shares:

The Company has only one class of cquity shares havieg a par value of INR 10 per share and hotdes of the cquily share is entitled (o ane vole
per share and entitled for pro-rata dividene, if any declared/paid oy e company. subject o approval of sharcholders,

Termsfrights attached to preferenee shares:
The rete of dividend on preference shares will be deeided by the Board of Directors as and when issacd Preference snares as and wher issued
shall have the cumulative right to receive dividend as and when declared and shall have preferential riglit of repayment an amount ot capizal,

Purstiant to non paymest of divideat for three consequtive years preference shareholders is entitled 10 one vote per share,

Particubars

As at March 31,2023

Ay at Ma

rgh 31,2022

Number Amount (Lakhs) Number Amount ([,:ll(hs)_-
Shares outstanding at the beginning ol the vear 11,80,.90,000 11,809 00 1 E.80.90,000 11.809.00
Shares issued during the year - - - -
Shares outstanding at the eod of the year 11,80,90,000 11,809.00 11,80,90.000 11,80%.00
Details of the shares held by cach sharcholder holding more than 8% shares:
As at March 31,2023 Ay at Maeeh 31,2022

Name of Sharcholder No., of Shares held % of Holtling No. of Shares % of Hotding
- Ielel
Taiprakash Associctes Limited and its nominecs 11.80.90.000 108% 11.80,90.000 0%

Shares held by the holding compuny:

Particulars

Nature of Relationship

i As oal Marceh 31,

2023

Ay at Mureh 31,
2022

Equity Shares

Taiprakash Associates Limited mud igs nominees

Holdimg Company

Sharcholding of Premoters

11.80.90,000

11.80.90.000

Marticulars

As at Mareh 31,2023

A at Via

el 31,2022

o r ,
No. of Shares held % of Holding

No. of Sharcs
held

%Yo of Helding

Promaoters

11,8(,90.000 H00%

11,80.90.000

100%




HIMALYAN EXPRESSWAY LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

(ANl Amount in INR Lakhs)

Note no. 12
Otheyr equity

Reserve and
Sarplus

Other Comprehensive

Particulars Tatal
. . Income
Retained earnings

Balance as at April 01, 2021 (22,134.25) - {12,134.25)
Profit (Loss) for the year {(19.077.19) (19.077.19}
COther Comprenensive Income 1.77 - 1.77

Balance ss at March 31,2022 (41,209.67) - {41,209.67)
Profit (Loss) for the year (133.90) (133.90)
Otticr Comprehensive Income (2.200 - (2.2

Balance ag at ¥wreh 31,2023

(41,345.77)

(41,345.77)

{i} Retained carnings

Retained earnings comprise of the profits/{losses) of the company earned tili date net of distributions and ether adjustments.




TITMALYAN EXPRESSWAY LINITED
NOTES FORMING PART O THE FINANCIAL STATENENTS FORTITE ¥EAILENDED MARCIH 3, 2023
Adl Amount in Laes)

Asa) Viareh 31,2023 As st March 30, 2022
Particulars

Note no. 13
Borvowings {non-currcut)
Beceared - at amortised cost
Redeemanle non corverable debentures 2.052.21 2065 78
Term lome from bank . )
2.052.21 2,665.78

Unsecured - at amortised cost
Inter corporate loans
rom holdmg company 11 330,52 10,116 54
Other loans
eference shores 4.067.61 3.604,51
15.398.14 13.781.05
17.450.35 16,446 8:4
Security and teramn of the horrowings are given beliw !
I hese are stated at menmertsed cost Gamount ontstanding inclading cuyreut matarities)
Particulirs A ut March 31,2023 As at March 31, 2022
Redeomable secures nea convertible debenlures of INR 103,000 cach 2,548.00 3,212.00
Soraarium Passoud Interest canverted vy Principal on Non convertible debeotunes 129 67 16346
Term toan o 10K Bank 1634138 17.841.38
19.019.05 21,.216.84

Nan convertible debentures
Ihe Redeemabie Securcd Mon Convertible Debentuares (NCDSY of VK 23598 Lakhs (ssud 1o India Inliadebt Limnedi ag mentioned asove rank parn passu with mndebtness
ol Compmiy ander the Fasihiy Agreeneet with ICICT Bank These are redecinable 0 28 quarterly mseattnents from Decamiber, 2020 vli August, 2026,

Term loan Crom LCICT Bank
The Term Loan o JCICT Bank s secared by first charge on all mamavable assets except project asseis, all taegibic movsble assets, alt mtangible assets, all accounts of
thie Conipany (eserow accounts!/ sub accountsy, the receivables. and all anhonsed wvestatent | presend and futuee and pledsg of 0% shares of the Company held by

Jmprakash Asscondes Lid, {Holemg Company). 10 repayasle o 27 quarterly wstallments trom Nov, 2009 1t May, 2026, However, due (o delault m Repaynent the full
amaunt ¢ loan ts considered as shon term borrowing and 1he ecmpany has wade an application lor resuuctining the loan.

Lgan Drom holding compaay

imprakash Associmies Linited (loldmg companyd has proviced terest free unseeured loan of INR T7800.00 Lacs o sompianee witlt loan agrezment with [CIC1 Bank
Limred dared 30 March, 2010 and the dean las been sceeum for i cecordance with the requormnems of INID-AS e lean s sepayable after (he repayment of term loan
of WCICT Bark & redemption of NCLs,

Redeeinable preference shares

The Company has ssuee 1% Redeemable Cumulalive Preference Shares of INR N} cacl: Tolly paid wps for a pericu o1 10 years extendable up to 20 vears, redeentable at
any tisae al the oplion of the Cempany and among ollier conditions inter alia that the preference shme hielders <ball bave pncoty over ecquity share holders m the payment
vl eividend and sepayment al capital in case of hgoidation of the Compiany,

Note no. 14
Provisions (non-cayrent)
Provision [or eimployer berefigs:

Provisier (or gratuty an7 2.55
[ eave encashment . . 15§ _ 1.43
4.05 3.497
Note no. LS
Other nan earveat lizbilitics
Deferred merne tor cagital sabsidy {Govenmnent geant)’ B.0174.32 8817497
8.0174.32 8.817.97

Iy aecordance with the torms of Concession Agrecment wult Makonal | lighway Antnonity of indaa (NFAS) daicd 315t Avzust, 2007, NHAT had given the capital grsnt of
INICTE700 G Lacs 1o the Company

4% M\




HIMALYAN EXPRESSWAY LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PARYT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR TIHE YEAR ENDED MARCIH 31, 2023

{Al Amount in ENIU Lakhs)

Particulars

As at March 31, 2023

As at March 31, 2022

Nate nn. 16
Barrowings {curreni)
Sceured - at amortiscd cost
“Term Toan from bank'*?
Corrent masoeicics ol non-corrent debt
Redeemable non converuble debentures
Linseenred - af amortsed eost
Loan from holding company

' Refer note 12

16,341.38 17,841 38

617.92 697.79
11,408 71 1140871
28,368.02 29,947.89

Yncludes delault in repayment of terns lodn amonnting to INR 503455 Lakhs (Period of default 36-786 days). And duc to default 1l loan Jins been classiled as current

Lorrowimgs  accardanee with the erms of Lhe agreement.

Note no. 17
Trade payables

Retenver money (includimg iNR 402 43 Lakhs of holdig company}
Towl puistanding dues of micro and simall enterprses

Toral oustanding dues ol creditors other than micro and small enterprises

Trade Payables ageing as on March 31, 2023

665 83 591.76
226.49 404 83
912.31 996.59

Particulars

Quistanding for following pariods from due date of payment

Not Due Less than 1 year 1 -2 years 2 - 3 years More than 3 years
(i} MSME R _ .
{iii Others 110 24 55.54 185.40 561.13
filij Gisputed dues MM -
fiv] Disputed duas - Others S o L
Tatal 110.24 55.54 185.40 561.13

Trade Payabies ageing as on March 31, 2022

Outstanding for followlng perlods from due date of payment

Particulars
Not Dug Less than 1 year 1-2years 2- 3 years More than 3 years
[} tsMmE B - Bl B
{il) Others 145.70 56.82 215,32 S78.75
(il Disputed dues M’::ME . =
tiv) ispuied dues - Qthers N 5 3 T =
Total - 145.70 56.92 215.32 578.75
Note no. 18
Otiher Nnancial linbilities {euryent)
Financial liabilitics at amortized cost
Seeur:ly Deposited ngainsl Passes 1997 19.97
Imerest acerved and dug on borrowings' 8,865 32 5,93070
Ierest seerued bat not due on borrowings .84 .88
e to stall 5.89 613
Gther payables 38.94 279.03
_ 8.950.96 0,236.71

"Incluges cofault of interest of INR 886332 Lacs of 1CICI Loan (Period of defanlt 1-1218 davsi




HIMALYAN EXPRESSWAY LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023
{(All Amount in INR Lakhs)

As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Pavticnlars

Moie no, 19
Pyrovisions {current)
Proviston for emplayes benefit

Bonus 0.52 0.40
Graunly' 6.86 6.37
Leave encashment .08 0.06

746 6.83

"neluding INR 6 73 lakhs (PY INR 6.28 lakhs)due 1o gratuity trust

Mote ao. 20
Other current liabilitivs

Stalutory lrahilities' 1033 10.34

'Statutory Liabuities includes sontribution to provident fund and employee state insurance corporation, tax deducted/collected at saurce, gocds and service tax ¢is.




HIMALYAN EXPRESSWAY LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

(All Amount in INR Lakhs)

Particulars

Year ended
March 31, 2023

Year ended
March 31, 2022

Note no. 21

Revenue from operations
Sale of services

Income from toll collection

Note no. 22
Other income

Intercst income on financial assets carried at amortised cost

Bank deposits
Others

Amortisation of capital subsidy (Govermnent grant)

Profit on Sale of Fixed Asset
Sale of Scrap
Miscellaneous income

Note no. 23

Employee benefits expenses

Salarics and wagces

Coniribution to provident and other funds
Staff welfare expenses

Note no. 24

Finance costs

Interest measurcd at amortised cost
Intercst on term loan
Interest oi non convertible debentures
Other financial instruments

Bank and other finance charges

Note no. 25
Operation & Maintenance Expenscs

Road maintenance cxpenses including major maintenance

Electricity, power & fuel

Security service

Consultancy & advisory charges
Vehicles running & maintenance
Repair & maiatenance of machinery
Office building and camp maintenance

Note no. 26
Depreciation and amortization expense

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Amortization of intangible assets

4,894.77 1.203.39
4,894.77 1,203.39
0.37 0.33
0.00 0.10
743,65 233.30

- 0.02

- 0.20
608.66 13.93
1.352.67 247.98
390.86 24378
4.13 4.14
13.87 7.58
408.85 255.49
3,011.87 2,507.08
32571 367.06
[.617.08 [,447.07
354 3.54
4,958.21 4,324.75
121936 475.98
100.66 85.28
66.32 36.20
69.96 62.97
44.84 35.61
62.90 62.13
14.15 17.14
1,578.19 775.33
3.63 6.54
2,757.30 1230.72
2.760.93 1.237.26

4




HIMALYAN EXPRESSWAY LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

(All Amount in INR Lakhs)

Particulars Year ended Year ended
arch 31, 2023 varch 31,2022
Note no. 26A
Impairment of toll collection rights (3,443.32) 13,790.00
(3,443.3) 13,790.00
Note no. 27
Other expenses
[nswrance §2.44 82.25
Bank charges 2.31 0.86
Advertisement & marketing .38 0.38
Travelling & conveyance 1.35 3.28
Postage & telephone 4.04 3.10
Rates & taxes 1.20 4.73
Printing & stationery 1.47 1.30
Directors' fees 1.70 .80
Payments to auditors {Refer note 20A} 8.77 2.12
Legal & Professional Charges 13.31 4.07
Miscellaneous cxpenses 1.52 35.73
118.48 145.63
Note 27A
Payments to auditors
(#) To statutory auditors
Statutory audit fee 5.31 531
Certification fee 0.06
(a) To others
Tax audit fee 0.89 0.89
Internal audit fee 2.04 1,77
Certification and others 0.53 0.10

8.77 8.12
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IMALYAN EXPRESSWAY LIMITLED
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STA FEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCI 31, 2023
{Al Amount in INR Lakhs)

Nuie nu. 29

Earnings per share

The caleulation of Larning Per Share (EPSY as disclosed i the statement of profit and .ass has been made in accordance with [ndian
Accounting Standard (Ind AS-33) on “Farning Per Share™ given as under -

Paréiculars

Year ended
Alarch 31,2023

Year endecd
March 31,2022

AL Profie/{Loss) attributable to cquity sharcholders {133.90 (19.0772.19)
B3, Weighted avoerspe number of outstanding cquity shaics 118090000 11,80,90.000
C. Nomingl valug per equity share 10.00 10,00
1. Basic EPS (A/B) (0.1 (16.135)
1, Diluted EPS (A3 0oy (16.13)

Note no. 30

Contingeot liabilities and commitmenis

A Contingeot liabilities

Particolars

Asoat March 34,
2023

Agat March 31,
2022

i, Outstanding aucourt of bank guarantecs

i Damages imposed by @ an accaunt of delay i periodic mainlend
Damag | by NILAL toldelay ing lenance®

3.00
38327

3.00
2,850.00

*Ax por Coneession Agreement, FIEL need o carry oul major maintenance onee in every 3 years. Thoe mainicnance was required 1o be
completed by 21st March, 2017, which the Company failed 1o do so due fo bhusiness conditiors. thercfoe NHAT unposed a Penaly of INR
2850 Crore far non Cemplbance of provision of Coneession Agreenen. HEL has incurred the major repai exacrditure during FY 19-20 and
requested NELAD for waiver of the damages imposed, NHLAL through i3 letier dated inquived HEL fo veview rolovant provisions for relaxation of
dmmages imposea and provide justiBable comments with reconunendations fon taking further necessery action,

Further, NEIAL issued a leiter to ihe company (through "Independent Consuliant™) stating that "there 1n no provision i Concession Agreemeni
for such type of waiver”,

The company has replied that as per the said agreement e peanity clause will be attracted in epse the separ and maalenaoce bas not done dy
company and the swne has been caried out by NEAD through thivd party bat in our case frome 21810 March, 2007 (due date of repair
maintenanee) it date NHAL did not carried out any repair and maintenance from thivd party but infaet the company has done the required
repar akd maintenance in FY 19-20. Management of the company hetieve that it will sueceed 1 wilver of penalty smposed by N1TAL an merits,

Further more, Independsnt Engiaecy letier No580 Dated 17.01.202¢ ¢ caleulaed add:tional dacmages of cloreseid non compliances and
secomimended INR. 23327 Lakhs for the pericd from 01.07.2009 10 03.06 2020 (339 Days) pending approval of the Competent Authority,

i, Contingent lability in respect of incoce tax maiters ving before the competent Appellate Autherities as deisifed below:

Sv, Assessinent year Tax demand Tax pevalty Tax deposited Balance as at Balance as at
No. under procest March 31, 2023 Mareb 31,2022
Y] (» {(Cy {D=A~B-() -
i 2009-10 697 00.97 - -
pi 2001-12 74.88 7488 - -
3 _2012-13 43.78 15.51 37.40 21.89 71.89
Tolsl 179.63 15,51 173.25 21.8% 21.89

For AY 2009-10. AY 2011-17 & AY 2012-13. the company has preferred appesl against the demand raiszd by the Ineoime Tax Department
which ave pending svith the Honble High Court of Tudicature at Chandigarh. “The Compaay is hopelui ol suitable reliel in this cegasd,

iv, The Company bas issucd 1% Redeemable Comwlative preference share of INR 100 cach fuily paid aggreganng 1o INR 2,300 {_akiss, The
Campary is under obligation to pay dividend, However, the Company has not paid any dividend due 1o losses and aceounted e same as per

Indl AS.




RINALYAN EXPRESSWAY LINMITIED
NOTES FORMING PARTOF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FORTHE YEAR ENDED MARCI 31, 2023
(A Amount in INR Lalchs)

B. Commitments

Asat Yareh 31, As at varch 31,
2023 2022

Fariiculars

Estimated annoont ol costracts remsining to be exceuted on capilal account and
ned reovided T Dnet of advances) -

Note no. 31

) As Ministy of Road Transport and Thghways had amnounced suspenszion of wll colleeton from 91h November. 2010 o 26d Decsniba,
2016 due ta Demonctisatian, Accordingly tie Conpany has requested NLAT Tor Compensation agienst wll revenos loss Guring ithe said period
(3102006 1 2,12 2008) amounting INRC 3 08 Crores, NHAL asked Tor Independent Cansallam's comments on the said request of HEL,
Independem Corsuftant saggested 1o NIAT for Extersion of Coneession pesiod for which eolicetan o Fec vemisn suspended te., 273 days
hours 30 mines w conpensate (or the suspersion of ol collection. No oxtersion veder s recerved 1R now but the Company s hopeicd of
snitahle relicl i g regerd

i) Doe o Covid-19 pandemic. there was » complete lockdown in the country and hee movement of Trade was closed on all
highwys/Expressways, Accordingly NHAL directed the toll companies (o closed dewn the ol operation fram 261k March. 2020 to 19th April,
2020, 1he compary had requesied NIAL Tor retief on account of revenue loss sulfersd durmng e said petiod amounting INR 6,11 Croes,
NHAT asied the company to submit consolidated proposal Tor the said period and period during whicl collection was fess than S0% of Average
Daily Cee (through "Indepeadent Consuttant), Didependent Consultort sagpested 0 NITAT for Exfension ol Concession perind lor which
collection o Fee rensan suspeaded e . 24 days 13 hows 1o compensate For the suspension of 1ol colleerion, No extension order i received il
naw but the Campany is hopefe) of snitable relief i this regard.

() Doe o Farsers' Agitaton, the compavy had o close the o)l operation fiem fone 2310 Decemete, 2020 0 ) 1 December 2021, The
Comniny s issee a leiter to NHAL seeking claim amounting o INR U777 Croves Tor suspension of tell speraticn from Decomber 23, 2020 to
December 110 2021 a5 the sald event is covered under the Agrecnent. Claim of INR 5,92 Crone & Eatension of Cencession period for 352
Deys was recerved inthis regerd.

Note o, 32
Employee benefifs oligations
1. Defined contribution plans

The Company has recogiised following expenses in respect of the defined contribuiion plans:

] Year ended Year ended
Particulars

Mareh 31,2023 March 31, 2022
Company's contnbution 1o providert fund 3.58 358
Compiny's contribution fo ESIT (135 .56
Total .13 4.14

LE. Defined benelit plans

Iaiprakesh Associates Linnited (JALY (e nolding comspany) has constituied a sepatate gratuily Band fros: under the aame Taiprakash Associaes
Eaployces Gratnity Fond Trest vide Trost Deed dated 30th Mareh, 2009 icr empleyees ¢l TAL and its subsiciacics and appainted SBI Laife
nsueance o, Lid, Ter the management of the trust funds for employees bepelit. As a subsicimy of JAL | the Company Is participating jn the
rust fuid by contnibuting is Lialslity acerued up to the closs of each hnancial year {o the teust fund,

Below tables sets ronih ine changes in the projected benetht obligation and plan esseis and anounts recognised i the Balanes: Shee ag at March
31, 2023 and March 31, 2022, being the respective measurement dates:




THMALYAN EXPRESSWAY LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEVIENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCIL 31,2023
{All Amount in INR Lalhs)

{i} Movement in defined benefic obligations

Particulars Gratusty L.eave Fncashment
{aneledd {unfunded)
['iresent value of obligation as at April 1, 2021 4.84 1.50
Current service cost .47 028
Past Service Cost - -
Interest cost 0.32 0.10
Beuchits paid {1.53) (0.24)
Remeasurements - actuarial loss/ {gain} {1.43] (0.15)
" Present value of obligation as at March 31, 2022 2.64 1.49
Current service cost 0.57 0.30
Past Service Cost - -
Interesi cost 0.18 0.19
Benefits paid {(2.37)
Remeasurements - actuarial loss/ (gain) 2.17 0.23)
Preseat vadue of obligation as at March 31, 2023 3.9 I_FGH
(i) Movenent in plan assets — gratuity (fuoded)
- Year eade Year ended

Particalars

March 31,2023 March 31,2022

Fair value of plan assets £t beginning of year n.28) (5.11)
Lxpecied return an plan asscts {0.46) (.36
Employer contributions 2.37 -

Bencfits paid (2.37) (1.53)

Agtuanal gain / (loss) - _

Fair value of plan asscts at end of vear {6.74} {6.28)

(iii} Recognised in statement of Balanee Shect

A Gratuny (funded)

. As at March 31,  As at March 31,
Particulars

o 2023 2022
Present value of obligation 3.19) {2.64)
Fair value of plan assets {6743 (6.28)
Provision {net) (2.03) . (8.9

B. Leave encashment {unfunded)

. As ut March 31, As at March 31,
Particulars

2023 2022
Present value of obligation o {1.66) {1.49)
Fair value of plan assets —— < ' -
Provision (net) (1.66) {149

(ivy Reeognised in statement of profit and loss N
Particulars Gratuity Leuave Encashmeny

{funde) (unfunded)

" Current Service cost o 0.42 028
Past Service Cost - -
inierest cost 03] 010
Net actuanial (gaind / loss recognized -

__Forthe year ended Mareh 31, 2022 0.73




INIMALYAN EXPRESSYWAY LINVITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOWI TTIE YEAR ENDED MARCL 31,2023
(ANl Amount in INIU Lalkhs)

Current Scrviee cost 0.57 0.30
Past Service Cost - -

Inlerest cost 0.61 0.10
Net aciuariz] (gain) / loss recognized - (0,23)
For the year ended March 31, 2023 1.19 0.17

{v) Expenses recognised in Other Comprehensive Income

Year ended

articula
Particulars March 31,2023

Year ended
Narch 31,2022

Remeasurement - actuarial gain / (loss) oo gratuily ) (2.?.0) ) 1.77
{(vi) The principal actearial assumptions used for estimating the Company’s detined benefit obligations are set out
Particulars Asat As at
- March 31, 2023 March 31,2022
Dscount rate 7.33% 6.86%
Expected rate of jncrease in salary 4.00% 4.00%
Mortality vate 100% of TATM 100% of TALM
(2012 - 1) (2012 - 14

Retiroment Age 60 60
Attritiun vrate

Upto to 30 years 200% 2.00%

From 31 to 44 years 3.00% 5.00%

Above 44 vemrs 3.00% 3.00%

{vii) Sensitivity avalysis

Change in k.ffeet on

I-ffect on Leave

Particulars . Gratuity Fneashment
issumption A Lo
obligution obligatian
Discount rate +0.50% (0.12) {0.08)
-0.530% 015 0.08
Salary Growth rate +0.50% 0.13 0.08
-030% i{0.13) (0.08)

The above sensitivity analysis is based on a change in an assuption while holdivg sl oiher assumpiions constant, Tn practice, this is unlikely
to cccur, and changes I same of the assumptions may be correlaled. When caleulating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to
sipnificant actuarial assumptions the same methed {prajected unit eredit method) has been applied as when caleulating the defined benefit

obbgation recognised within the Balance Sheet, The method and types of assumation used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change

as compared to the previous year

(viii) Estimate of expected beaefit payments (in absolute terms i.e, undisconnsed)

Particulars Gratuity Leave Encashment
{fundced) {unfunded)

01 Apr2023 to 31 Mar 2024 0.12 0.08
01 Apr 2024 to 31 Mar 2025 011 0.06
01 Apr 202510 31 Mar 2026 011 0.06
01 Apr 2026 to 31 Mar 2027 011 0.06
01 Apr2027 to 31 Mar 2028 0.17 (1.06
01 Apr 2027 to 31 Mar 2028 0.47 0.03
01 Apr 2029 Onwards o 2.1




LBIMALYAN EXPRESSWAY LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR EINDED MARCIL 31, 2023

(AU Amount in INIZ Lakhs)

Note ap, 33

Disclosnres of related pavties as requirad by Tnd AS-24

(i) Holding company

laiprakazh Associates Linated (JAL)
(i) Key mamagerial personnel (KMDP)
Smt Megha Kainth, Company Sscretary
Shrs Ranviay Singh, Drrector & CEO
Shey X C Batra, Therector

Shr Ve Pratap Arors, Director

Shrt Sudber Kamar Shokla, CFOCwef 1811 2022)

St Ashek Sann, CFQ (up to 30 06 20223
Transactiong with related poties

Parliculyrs

Name of related parry

Redation with related

Year ended

party ¥urch 31,2023 Mareh 3, 2022
Recripts: T
Unsecured loan Jarprazast Associates faritea  {Held g company 363 50
Income:
Sale af Asset Tavnakash Associsies Linued  |Holaing company 348
Eapenditnre: -
Canex/ parchazes Jaiprakash Assecnies Lionied | Floldg company {DBE) 181
Sating Fres Shre Ranvijay Simgh KnP 054 054
Snting Fees Shre £ C Bawa KM 054 054
Sitling Fees Sher Wi Protag Arong kWP 043 -
Sulary & perguisies St Magha Kamtn Kl 1057 039
Other tunsechans St iezha Kamtn P 376 376 }
Ontslandding balance
) ) As at
Particulars Name of related parly Relation with relaied
- party March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Unsecuered loan ) :]-uipra'wsé\ Assoiates Lirrilad  |Halding company 23,7149 24 21,525 25
Ratention money Jaiprakash Associates Linuted  [Heldwig company 402 42 432 42
Preference share capnal Jatprakash Associates Losited | Holding compriny 4,067 61 3,664 51
Other pevables Jasprakash Associales Dirured  [1aleing campany 1277 539 128,55
Shn Ranwvimy Swgh P 108 054
Shry K € Batra KmMP V7 D63
Shre Vor Pratap Arcra Kmnp 045 -
Simt Megha Kanth KMP 1 00 197

Key Management Persomszel Campensation:

Payticulars

Year ended

Year ended

Maech 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Busic Pay 373 Je3
Heuse Rent Allowance 774 218
Perqu-site 152 7506
Providen: Fund 043 344
Retwoment b il - -
Total cosnpunsilion 138 14,18




SOMALY AN EXPRESSWAY LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOU THE VEAR EADED SMARCU 3], 2023
(A Amount in INR T akhs)

Note no. 34

Segmeat wlormalion

The Company 1 engaged 1 the busmess of construcuon, aperation and metesance of highways The Duircgioc and Croel Executpve Ofcer of tle Company, whieh
has beoa gdentified ws beag me Cmel Opevaleg Seusaon Maher (CORRMYL cvatuates the Compamy 5 poteensenee, atlocale ccsourees based en the analyas of the
various performaecs mdicator of e Company as a smghe wnt Therelore, there s only one reportadle segment o e Compaey  The seperiing under ike povisions of
Iind AS 1405 [Segmeni Infenmstuon) does vol anse.

Eutiiy wide disclosure

AL Revenue from Qperations

Particulirs Year ended Year ended

ae Maych 31, 2023 Nlaceh 31, 2022
Pomeshe B 4 894 77 1203 39
Clworscas - -
Total ) - $894.77 120339

B. Non Current Segment Assels'

Particulars As at Mareh 31, Asul March 31,

’ 2023 2022
S hdig - 13148767 az,m.si'
-Qutsady lishia .
Total 3348747 32.758.64

1 - .
Mon-curienl segment asseis meludes peoperty. plant gl ggquspment's, copital work i progiess ozt assels wad olher non eerent assets,
Mo single ctstomes comnbuted 10% or ore to the conipany s reverue for bagh the Dnancal yea $ 2022223 and 2021-22

Nole 3o, 35

Lmpairment ol assets

e company durmeg the yeu ended Mareh 31, 2023 has carsed oot e valuztios ol 1he assel’s vatue moase b determining the assels value i use, (ke company has
estimated tne future cash Mow of the company on disconrted casl Mow basis wheh 15 based on vanous assumpt:on made o arnve at e range of values I estimating
the futwe cush lows, the company has inade key assunmbions of therecept of gash mlow | the company based on these assmeolions, has determmed the valae m use
of the company as at March 31, 2023 (oo valuater date) The Tair vofue measurement s categorzed a5 o level 3 Taiy value based on the inputs in the valuation
icchntques used, Based an (e above desting mparent reversal o INR 3,443 32 Lakhs ss odentfied as at March 31, 2023, as ke recaverable valug of the Toll Road
(intangible Assety is togher than s camymg value The company has wscd ¢discountog rale ol §6 09% for disscounting the Tuture cash aws,

Nate Ng.30
Lebenture Ledenption Reserve has nowbeen created in vicw ol inadequacy ¢l prohl dunmg the yea

Note do37
e company hos neither weee:red any expersditure i SOrZIgn CeIFERey SoT HERE CNCT S0y WICeme I ieien cuorency during the year

Mote no, 38
Capital management

The Company manages s capual struetere and mishes adinstaents o hght ol ehanges moeconoame condstrons and the regurements of the finaneal coveaants e
Compeay's primary ehjective when mannging candat s o ensuee that it matans an cihewend capial siruetine and healihy cepital retios and salegoard the Company's
abily te continue as a goig concem mowrder Lo sopport ity business ane provede axasom cennes for sharcholders Vae Company also aronoses (o auaistain wn
eptimal coptal structpre W reduce the cost of capiual,

For the purpase of the Company’s capita! management, capial neledes dgsned equsly share capital, seecunty peanunm reserve and all other equily reserves Nel debn
ineIndes, wieiest bearmg Joans and borrowvings, tade and ather payablas Tess cash and sher e deposins e Cerpany momiwons capaal asieg peanag rano, whicl is
agt debt divicded by tetal capital

Particulass Ax at March 31, As at ¥arein 31,
2023 2522
Debt -
Loary and Borrowings A5.81837 46,394.72
Lesst Cush and cash equivalems 66381 221137
Total debt (a) 43, 154.56 46,173.35

Capiral / Net wortl

Gearing Ratio

(26,536 77

- B -152.88%
Ner changes were made i the objectives, policies or processes Tor avanasing cap:tal danmg the years ended ot Marel 3820273 and Mach 31,2

(25,400 67)



IUIMALYAN EXPRESSWAY LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATENYIENTS FORTHE YEAR ENDED MARCLL 31, 2023

(AN Ameunt in INI Lakhs)
Note no. 39
Fiwancial wstroment amld risk management

() Financial instruments by calegory

Financial assets

Particulars

As at March 31,

As at Mareh 31,

1023 2022
Fimancial assets designatel at amortised cost’
Cash and cash ecaivalents 463 81 22137
Bank balances other than cash and cash cquivalents T.06 5.70
Oihe Dnancial assels . B 5495 4 34
Total financial assets 676.82 232,40

Finunciul Linbilitics

I"articulars

Asat March 31,

Ay at March 31,

20023 2022
Fiaaneial liabilities designuted at amordsced cost”
Renoswings (ncluding surzent malunly of loaa) 1581827 Al 30 77
trade payables 912 31 986,59
Ciier Twsancaal habilities 895095 6,236 71
Total financial diabilitics 55,651.64 53.625.03

]
e

Canvying value of the financial assels and Anancal hebilizes designated st smoitised cost aparoximales 1s fair value
Fuir valuc hicranrchy
e Cowmpany mamtams pohcies and procedwss W value Hnan ancial pabitites vsing the best and most relevant avadablie dota The far values of the

Minznaal assels andd hahilitizs represents e amoanh that would be sooeovad toosell anoassel o paad (o ansfer & liabihity m a0
participants gt the measurement date

aly travsaction between manket

Ihe following table provides the fur vatue measorement foerachy of Company’s assel ang habil:ties, grouped into Level 1 to Level 2 as desenbed below
Level 1: Thneludes fair value of fancial wstruments raded in acteve mankels and ae based oo gnoted market prices at the balanze sheet date

Livel 2: These valuation teclnques maxmse the vse of obseivable suiched data whaere 0 aviolakle and rely as Iinle as possikle on the company specific estimates. If
all signilicant iputs required to fair value an instrument gre observanle then mstrament is melided in level 2,

Level 31 Inputs (or the assct or hability that are nof baseq ur abservabic market data (that s, unobscrvable mipots], 10 oae ar more of the sigaificant inpaty 15 1ot based
on chservable market dato, the mstzement is included i Tevel 3,
The company has na finaneal azsel and Enancial bablties as ot year end Tor which lair valualion is required.

(e) Financial risk mawagement
The Compary’s corporate treastry finedons provides services o e hosaness, coorhnetes aceess to the imascial

narkets, nwnitors and manages the Enancial risks
reratng to eperations of the Company through ntemal tisk reporls which analyse exposmng by degree ond magnitude of sk These nsks melude manke: nsk {scluding
cunreney rsko interest rte nisk and other price nsks, credit sk and higadng nsk)

Tlee prancapal fNinancial assers of the Company melude cther rezeivables, ane cash ane hank Balances that denive dweectly fromy its aperatiers The principal fizaners,
Sabihbes of the Campany. melude [owes ane borrowings trde ond otk payables and Gz mam pipose of these Hmancial habihues st finenee the day 1o day
operations of the Contpany

The Company’s senior management gversees the manapement of these asks The semge professwonals working (¢ manage the fnancial nsks ang e appropraie
financial nisk governanee framewark for the Conpany are accocatable 1o the Board of Lzeclors and Andd Comentee, This process provides asswance 1o Company’s
seor mznagement that the Compary’s finascial tsk-tabing achivibes are governed by appropriate pelicies and procedures and thin Hioancial nsk are identified,
measared and managed in accordanee witls Company pehicies and Company tisk obechive. o he event of cnsis cansed doe o external laetors such as cavsed by rcegnt
pangemic “COVID-197, the management assesses ke recoverability al s assets, niatority ol 1ts habihities to facior 1t i cash Aow foreenst o ensure there 15 enough
tipgsehity 1 these situations througli mieal and external source of funds Mnese forecast and assurepitons are reviewed by board of d.rectors,

Tlis note explzins the risks which the Company s exposed Lo and pehowes and Ramewark adopted by the Company 1o mansge these risks

(1) Market risk
Market nisk (s the rigk that the P value of future cagh fows of @ Dnanciz, osstewrer wil Qectuate beeause e changes momarket prices, Market prices comprises fhree
ypes of nish correney rate nsk. interest rate rish ard othee prooe rshs such as cquity price tsh and sommmod:ty price risi Financial instruments affecied by market nsks
wcludde loans and borrgwings, deposits. invesusents . md foreign covency recevables anu payables. The sensitivity amalysas inale Dllowing sections zelate 1o (ne
pusilon as at reportmg dale.

The malysis exelude the impact ol mavements 1m kel varabies o the carrying values of grotwiy and olher post-rctmement obligat ons:
pravesions: and the non-financial assats and tiabihlies e sensivvaly of the relevant Prant and Loss e aad equaiv s the citect of the assamed changes m [he
wspective market nxhs. Ms s based onthe Dnanciat assets and mancal nabimoes held ay oi March 31, 2023 and March 21, 2022




ITIMALY AN EXPRESSWAY LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FORTIHE YEAR ENDED MARCI 31, 2023
(A Amouvat in INR Lakhs)

() Interest rate risk

irierest e risk s the risk thae the Tar value o Tulure cash flows of a linanzial mstoment will luctuae because of changes momarket mterest rates The Company’s
exposwes 1 the 1sk of changes o markeCmterestrates velases primanly toihe Company’s debt obbigations with Moating intesest rates

The Company’s expesure o the nsh of changes o wiacket arie st rates relytes prmants o the Company’s debt obhpations with floatieg wterest rates, which arg
mcluded o ingerest bearing loans and borrowmes 19 these Tinancial statements, The Campaey’s fivea rate borrovwmgs me carned af amortsed 2ost They are herefore
nol subgeet W mterest rale sisk, swoee neiher th carrymng ancunt ros e fdure casl Bows wil tocliate beeawse of a ehange in maket mterest rates

As at March 31, As at March 31,
2023 2022

13,398 14

19,011 52

Particulars

Fised rate borrowings
Iloating rate horrowings

13,781 05
21.20495

interest rate Sensitivity of Borcowings
With oll other variables held cormant, the Tellowme sable demeosirates the sensialy i o reasonably possible change o iterest rates on eating sate porticn of loaes
and bonowings.

Your ended
March 31,2023

Yeur ended
March 31,2022

Particulars

Increase in 30 basts ponis

(93 (6 {106.02)
Decrease o S0 bams pointg 9506 106,02

(1) Credit risk

Credn nsk s the risk that counterpmty will nol mect ns ebhgabens leading 1o a Tmaneal loss Since the Company's provary dusiness is wli coliection Tom geneal
public which is primary in cash, iere is no credst rish mvaved A deloodt on a tmancial assens when iere s @ significant inerease 1 the credit nsk which s evalnated
kased an the basingss environmaat, Taz assels are wilten ¢l when te Company s certan shaut 1he ron-recovery

{a) Financial insteuments and cash deposits

Credit nsk from balances with baaks and Twancial ustiulions s managed by the Company’s treasury depatment in aceosdance with the Conipany’s pobcy
tnvesunents of surplos unds are nude i bary depesns and other (:sh free securibes Phe Timats are sct 10 minimize the concentranon ot s isks and therefore mutigate
finanziat loss through coumerparly s potential Fnlure tomake payowems The Conspany’s maximunm expasure w credit risk for the components of ibe balance sheet v 33
March 2023 iz the aarrying amounds. The Company s mpnunm expogire retating o Snancial mstriment 5 noted o1 Lguiduy table below  Financua!d assels are wrilen

off when thare 15 no reasonabie expeetation uf reeovery. sneh as deblec foling o engage i the repayment plan with the Company

fill) Liguidily risk
M fina

acial abilities of the Company melude foans and bostowings. trade and other payadles The Conpany's principal sourees of hguity are cash sud cash

equivalents and the cash flow taat is generated Trem operations The Company maonitors 1ts nsk of shortage of funds to meet g financial Dabinies using a houidity
planming toe! The Company plans o mamian saiticient cash and masketable secunbes o meet the obhigatens as and when fail due,

The rable below anayses e Company's tinancial habnitics andd financial asscts inle relevant maturity grovpings based on therr contractual pyatunics

Particulars [ess than 1 year | Mare than 1 year Marc than 3 Total
aind up to 5 vears VeArsS
As at Ylarch 31, 2023
Finnacial Assets
Cash and ¢osh cquivalents 663 81 - - G63.81
Bank balances cther thas cash andg cash eguevalents 7.00 - - 7.06
Oiber finencial assets 059 3.95 - ¢.54
Total Finapcial Asscts 671.46 5.95 - 677.41
Financial Liabilities
Borrowmes (inciuding current matunly of non-cusrent idrrowings) 28 36802 208221 15,308 14 45 818,37
Trade payables 912,31 - . 912.38
Oiher financial habilities 950 96 - - 8,950 96
Total financial liabilitics 38.231.29 2.052.21 15,398.14 53,681.64
Particolais Less than | year | Maore than 1 year More than 8 Total
and up to § vears YCAES
As ol vareh 31,2022
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 22157 - - 23137
[3ark balgnces amer than cash and cash cguivaicns 670 - - 670
Clher fmancial assels - 4,34 - 434
Fotal Finaneind Assely B 228.07 434 - 232.40 |
Iinaneial Linbilities
Bomrewines (mcludmg carmens matuely of nen-cirent Duerowings) 26947 §9 2,665,798 12,781 05 41,394 32
Teade payables 936,59 - - %6 59
Cther financial habiities W 3,236.71 - - 236 71
Total finuneial linbilitics 718119 2,605.78 _ (628.03

O
O
]

*

%
% @

e AocosS

1378105




IIMALY AN EXPRESSEWAY LIMITLED
NOTES FORMING PART QF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED NMARCIL 3L, 2023
(A Amauntin INR Lakhs)

Note no, 40

The company bas becn incurrmg the cortinueus losses due 10 less teatlic an the tell coad and has mcorred the net Toss dunng e year amountiig (0 INR 136,10 Lakhsg
{previous year INR 19.075,42 Lakhs) and the corrent Habiliies of lhe cempany excecds Wt current assets by INR 37 501,08 Lakhs (nevious year INR 35894 88 Lakhs)
winzh indicates (hat there s materad sacertioty s oray cast sirvlicant doubl abowt the company's abilny (o conlume as gowmg concern henee Whereloe, W may ke
wnable to reabise its asse's and disclarge us habobites i thie normal 2ourse of the msimess, Henge, the Company is undertaking a number of steps which wall resalt i an
improvement e gash Dows and cnable the Company to mees s Bnancsal obliations Further, the Cempany has letter of financial support from Hoiding Company.
Addiienally. the Company las also started disenssion with g lenders for eestrocturing of their Joans and is cenitdent that the restrocturing plan would be approved,
Based o the Tnpegoing, the gomg coneen assulysion s conssdered to be approprinte

Note ni. 41
MNet Deferred 1ax assess for binung dhiterence has not been created v view of urcaimonty of folure faxable mcome against which such deferred tan can be ealized

Npie no. 42
Tittle deeds of ITmmovable I ropertics
There 15 noammovable progerty eld by the Conrpany

Note nu. 43
Yaluation of Property, Plant & Kqguipment, intaogible Asset
The company has not revalued iy property, vlant & orachmery and zangsble Asscls or both durmg the corrent or previous vear

Nute no. 44

Loans or advances to specilicd persons

Ny Joans or advances 1t e natere of loan are gramted 10 prmoters. directors. KMPS, and the relaied parties (as defined under Compames Act, 2013) eiiher severaily or
Juirtly with other persar, iat are repayable on demand o vathoe! speenfyng any erms o penod of repayments.

Nate nn. 45
Detads of Beaami praperty held

No proceed mgs have tean indiated on vi pening agamsi the campany Tor iolgmg benanu preperty ander the Benaew Transacticns (Prehibitice) Act. 1938{45 of 1938)
aird rules made therzonder,

Note nn. 46
Willul Defanlier

The company has not been declared wilful defavliler by any bank or financial mstitovion or other Tender.

MNote no, 47
Redatiynship with steuek olf companies
The compaiy has B0 transactions w:th the companizs stroek ot under seciien 248 of 1he companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of the compantes act, 1956

Note no. 48
Lindiselosed income
Ulere 15 no inegme surrcndered o1 disclosed as income Goring the current o previous year m the tax assessments under the fncame

Note no. 49
Details of reypto curveney or virtual curvency
The Company has not iesded or mvesied i rypo surrency or victuzl corrency duging the cwrrent or previous year

Note no, 50

Utitisaiion of borrowed Tunds

No funds have teen advanced or toaned or ivested {enber from borrowed Finds or share premium or any other sources or Xind of funds) by the Company o or m oy
ather person ar entity, ndluding Sngign enlitics CIntenpediares™) with fhe wnderstandise, whetber recovded B waiting or olberwise, that the Intermediary shalt o ar
mvest i party dentited by s an behalf of the Company (URimate Beneticmsies). The Compaony hns ned peecived any fond from any party(Fundinge Party) with the
mnderstiandimg that the Company shatl whether, dicectly or madisectly fend o fovest moother persons or entitics wlentified by or an behatif of the Company *Ultimate
Lencficianes”) or provide any guaranies, seeurity or the Like on behalf of the Ult:mate Benclivarics

Nate wo. 51

The Company has nol incarred casli (osses 11 the cureent fnoncal yeas, The Compaity has incurred ¢ash josses amoonting to TINR 3057 30 Lakbs o the immediuately
precediug financial year respectively




HIMALYAN EXPRESSWAY LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR TIHE YEAR ENDED MARCIL 31, 2023
(AIU Amountin [NR Lakhs)

Nol¢ no. 52
ke Cempany has cerimin dues to supolters repistiered under Micre, Small and Medium Laterprises Develepment Act, 2006.0 MSMED Act’) The disclosures pursuant
to the said MSMIED Act are as follows

Asat AMarch 31, As at March 31,
2023 2022

Pringipal mnount due to supphiers registered under the MSMED Act and ramaning unpaid as a1 vear end -

Juterest due to suppliers registercd ander the M SMED Act and remaining unpaid as st year end -

Pringipal amounts paud to supphers registered under the MSMED Act. beyoud the appoinied day during the vear -

Interest paic, other than under Section 1€ off MSMIED Act, to suppliers segistered ander the MSMELD Act, beyond the

appointed day dunng the year - -

Interest pard, ender Sceoon 16 of MEMED Acl. w suapliers registered under the MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day

during the year -

Interest due and payable towands soppliens cemistered inder MSMED Act, Tor payments already made - -

Further ivierest remaining due anc payable [or carhier vears

Farticnlars

Note:-

The above information regardmg Wicre and Snall enterpriscs has been determined to the extent such parbies have been idenhiied en the basis of information avadahle
with the Company

Note no. 53
Previous vear figures have been tegrouped/ rearcanged wherever zonsilered necessary (o confornt to current year’s classification

Signmificant accountirg policics }
The accompanying aotes foran an inteeral part of the Minancial Statements
As per our report of even date atlached,
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